
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER / I TDD Access: Relay NH
Jared S. Chicoine / i ) 1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603)271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J.EIIms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

Website:

www.energy.nh.gov

June 4, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to amend a contract with
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (CAPBM), Concord, NH,
Vendor #177203, by increasing the price limitation by $6,000, from $481,327 to $487,327 for
the Weatherization Assistance Program's Sustainable Energy Resources for Consumers grant,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2025. The original
contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 31,2024, Item #65
and amended on June 12, 2024, Item #51. There is no time extension being requested for this
contract. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the accounting unit. Low Income Weatherization. as follows:

FY 2025

02-52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 $6,000

EXPLANATION

The Department applied for and received this competitively awarded Sustainable Energy
Resources for Consumers (SERC) grant, funded through the USDOE's Weatherization
Assistance Program. Per the Department's application and the terms of this award, funds will be
used to install 18 solar photovoltaic (PV) arrays on the roofs of eligible single to four-unit
dwellings, along with 14 heat pump water heaters (HPWHs) in the CAPBM territory, which
consists of Belknap and Merrimack Counties.

The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will contribute to the installation of heat
pumps and/or PV arrays in approximately 32 homes in central New Hampshire.

The Department is requesting an additional $6,000 to allow for the SERC funds to be fully spent
out in PY24.



Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotie
and the Honorable Council

June 04 2025
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In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully submitted,

lared S. Chicoine

'Commissioner



CONTRACT AMENDMENT #2

>

This Contract Amendment (Amendment) is entered into by and between the State of New
Hampshire, acting by arid through the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department), 21
S. Fruit Street, Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301, (hereinafter referred to as State) and Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., 8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the Contractor), collectively-referred to as'(the Parties):

■  .WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on January 31, 2024, Item #65 and amended on June 12, 2024, Item #51
(hereinafter referred to as the Contract); "

\

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend and amend the Contract as provided in this
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed.by
both Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing,.and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1. P-37, Section 1.8, Price Limitation, of the existing Contract by deleting*the
cu^ent sum of $481,327 and inserting in place thereof: $487,327.

2. Exhibit.C; Paragraph 2, Amend by deleting "$481,3270 (which hereinafter is "
referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which $39,027.00 may be expended
for Administration," and inserting in place thereof "$487,327 (which hereinafter
is referred to as the." Contracted Amount"), of which $45,027 may be expended

,for Administration." -

3. this Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended and modified by^the terms and eonditions of this
Amendment, the Contract and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall
remain in full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

, IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands on the dates below.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. '"

Executive Director Date: 4/29/2025

Print Name and Title

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EE00099I6; Award Date; 07/01/2022 • Contractor Initials

SERC WAP ALN# 81.042 . Date 4^2025
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.' ' ' page I of 2



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Enei

J^d S. Chicoine, Commissioner
Date:

Approval by the Attorney General's Office (Form, Substance and Execution)

5/12/2025

Print Name and Title
Date:

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

G&C Meeting Date: G&C Item #:

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EE0009916; Award Date: 07/01/2022
SERC WAP ALN# 81.042

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Contractor Initials OA
Date ̂ 9Jg025
Page 2 of 2



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAPAND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretao' of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0007155741

SI

o

%

5^

^3711

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOih day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Christopher J. Pvtes. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors Executive
Committee, duly called and held on March 13. 2025. at which a quorum of the Directors were
present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Prooram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter

into contracts or agreements with Bank of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments
and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments,

and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full.force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This

authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this
Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will
rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any

limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of
New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

I: y/'/^Dated: Signature of Elected Officer
pher es

oard of DirectorsTitle: Presiden

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org



/KCORcl' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

01/02/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND.OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ̂

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). '

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester :

1100 Elm Street ,

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*''^ Stephanie Peffer
(603)669.3218 (603) 645.4331

AOMESS- 'Tianch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A: Selective'lnsurance Co. of SC 19259 •

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord ' . • NH 03302 '

INSURER a - State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURERC: Pederal lnsCo 20281

INSURER D :

INSURER £ :

INSURER F: . ' ' • ^ . -

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All 25-26 WC NH REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES.OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.' ^
AODLISUBKI POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSdIvWdI POLICY NUMBER ' | (MM/OD/YYYY> (MM/OD/YYYY) * k- LIMITSTnsr
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea oceufreneel

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025

MED EXP (Any ohep««»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENT-AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

OTHER- ^''ofessional LlabilliyX

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Professional Liability

1.000,000

1.000,000

20.000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddent) .

1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (Pef person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per Kcideni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acdOentr

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED X

OCCUR

CLAIMGMADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5.000,000

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025
AGGREGATE

5.000,000

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandelory in NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

0 R01707HCHS2025-01 (3a.) NH 01/01/2025 01/01/2026
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1.000.000

-i

Directors & OfTicers Liability
J06511302 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Limit

Deductible

1.000.000

5.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and'special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

,NH Department of Energy

21 South Fruit St

•  Suite 10

Concord , NH .03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE '
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25.(2016/03)

€> 1988^2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on the "Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. {a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 29. 2024 and February 28, 2023, 'and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. ' .

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 29; 2024
and February 28, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
.accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion . .

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the-standards-applicable to financial audits containedMn Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those,
standards.are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit, of. the Financial
Statements section of our report. We. are required, to be independent of-Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. and to'meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordarice vyith the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we hav'e-obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design,'implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial.statements that are free from material misstaterfient, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt' about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s abijity to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from matierial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards vyill always detect a material
misstatement when, it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for-.bne resulting..from error," as fraud may involve collusion,.forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, ihdividually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on,'the consolidated financial statements. '

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 'standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout-the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
. whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,-evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit'
procedures that are. appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community-Action Program of Belkhap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. .

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Actipn Program of Belkn'ap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time?

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code .of Federal Regulations Part 200, ̂Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit'Requirements-for Federal Av/ards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part oT the consolidated financial statements.. Such inforrnation is the responsibility ,pf
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures .applied in'the audit of the consolidated ̂financial statements'and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the uhderlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards



generally accepted in the United States of America. In" our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards Is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards; we have aisp issued our report dated November
14, 2024, on our consideration of Community Action Progranri'of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our'tests of its cornpliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is, solely to
describe the scope of our testing of inteVnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Cornmunity Action Program of Belkriap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

i, iKjifhinOL

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRtMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory ,
Prepaid expenses

- Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land: buildings and improvements

'  Equipment, furniture and vehicles
Construction in process

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Right.of use asset
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Tenant security deposits
Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of right of use liability
Line of credit

Accounts payable
'.Acaued expenses
Refundable advances

•  • -j

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above
Tenant security deposits

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

• Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024

;  786,672

3,691,075

90,873

93,547

151,171

• 4,813,338

7,717.223

4,623,986

12,341,209

6,053,895

6,287,314

1,136,814

143,291

■ 8,106

71,660

1,359,871

111,255

311,050

600,083

2,233,966

1,290,635

704.973

5,251,962

565,216

825,764

8,081

6,651,023

5,312,618
496,882

5,809,500

2023

$  1,711.575

6,027,912

. 81,569

100,225'

128,956

8,050,237

7,627,214

4,762,497
132,920

12:522,631

6,165,156

6,357,475

,  1,387,327

77,328

8,247

^  61,348

1,534,250

$ 12,460,523 $ 15,941,962

237,926

461,162

4,550,252

1,177,337

1.817,340

8,244,017

668,146

926,165

8,221

9,846,549

5,433,455
661.958

6,095,413

$ 12,460,523 $ 15,941,962

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

^  , FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental income

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Interest income

Realized loss on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program .
Management

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$ 26.129.332

125.806
3.627.514

525,485

•9,128

'2,703

(13,333)

30,406,635

3.212,844

33,619,479

31,676,562
2,063,754

33.740,316

(120,837)

5,433,455

3,047,768

3.047.768

(3.212.844)

(165.076)

(165,076)

661,958

$  5,312,618' $ 496,882

Total

26,129,332

125,806

6,675,282

525,485

9,128

2,703

(13,333)

33,454,403

•  33.454,403

31,676,562

2,063,754

33,-740,316

(285,913)

6,095.413

$  5,809,500

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES INH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental Income

Other funds '

In-kind

United Way
Interest Incorne

Realized loss on sale of equipment

Total revenues'and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS .

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Total expenses

$  56,930.603 $

140,962

' 2,804,065
401,748

3,659

895

(36.538) ■ _

60,245.394

3.194.861

63,440,255

61,101,300
1,988,237

63,089,537

3,122:293

3,122,293

(3,194.861) •

(72,568)

Total

$  56,930,603

140.962

5;926,358

401,748

3,659

895

(36.538)

63,367,687

63,367,687

61,101,300
1,988,237

63,089,537

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNjNG OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

350,718

5,082,737.

M33,455 .$

(72,568)

734,526

278,150

5,817,263'

661,958 $ . 6,095,413

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

Proaram Manaoement f Total

Salaries and wages ,  $ 9,105,646 $  826,693 $ . 9,932,339

Payroll taxes and benefits 2,565,764 224,252" 2,730,016

Travel = .259,348 11,431 270.779

Occupancy ' •. 1,462,035 67.742 1.529.777

Program services 14,707,259 - 14,707,259

Other costs:

Accounting fees ;  80,237 .  792 81,029

Legal fees 4,565 - 4,565

Supplies 195,916 40,011 235,927

Postage and shipping ' 46,082 • 46,082

Equipment rental and maintenance 4,780. - 4.780
Printing and publications •. ' 49,800 14,894 ̂ 64,694

Conferences, conventions and meetings 18,678 - 18;678

Interest 62,390 62,390'
Insurance 137,740 45,250 . .  182,990

Membership fees ■" 8,955 9,815 18,770
Utility and rhaintenance 59,074 69,084 128,158
Cornputer services 58,781 - 58781
Other - 2,413,981 154,502 2,568,483

Depreciation '• 32,436 536,898^ "  569,334
In-kind 525,485 - 525,485

Total functional expenses $  31,676,562 $  2,063,754 $ 33,740,316

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Proaram Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $ . , 8,902,376 $  84i:i41. $ 9,743,517

Payroll taxes and benefits '  2,422,222 155,843 2,578,065

T ravel 233,521 16,301 249,822

Occupancy ' 1,360,924- 133,139 1,494,063

Program services 44,607,205- .  - ,44,607,205

Other costs:

Accounting fees 66,194 -1,959 68,153

Legal fees 24,793 268 25,061

Supplies 289,188 38,955 328,143

•Postage and shipping 45,766 -  • 45,766

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,540 • 1,540

Printing and publications 41,775 15,970 57,745

Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,885 - 13,885

Interest 3,991 39,049 43.040

Insurance 131,454 30,788 162,242

Membership fees .  ' 13,298 10,283 23,581

Utility and maintenance 139,247 - 139,247

Computer services 71,214 71,214

Other 2,298,910 139,405 2,438,315

Depreciation ■32,049 565,136 ^597,185
In-kihd , 401,748 - 401,748

Total functional expenses $  61,101,300 $  . 1,988,237 .$ 63,089,537

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

'•¥ *

2Q24 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

,  Change in net assets $  (285,913) $  278,150
'Adjustments to reconcile'change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 569,334 597,185
Interest on deferred financing costs 484 483

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments -  .(22,215) 9,837
Realized loss on sale of equipment ,  13,333 36,538
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts'receivable " 2,336:837 • (783,291)
Inventory (9,304) 190,357
Prepaid expenses 6,678 (66,297)
Due from related party (10,312) , 4,140
Tenant Security Deposits 141 873

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities;

Accounts payable '(2,316,286) 914,597
Accrued expenses 113,298 91,130
Refundable advances ■  (1,112,367) 279,538
Tenant Security Deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net borrowing (repayment) on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR ,

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

. Cash •

Cash escrow and reserve funds

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest

(140)

(716,432)

(512,506)

(512,506)'

600,083
(230,085)

369,998

(858,940)

1,788,903

786,672

143,291

(899)

1,552,341

(773.876)

(773,876)

(154,350)
(309,165)

(463,515)

314,950

1,473,953

929,963 $ 1,788,903

•1,711,575

77,328

929,963 $ 1,788,903

62,390 . $ 43,040

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided'with the financial support.of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrirriack Counties, Inc: has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting- interest in their governing board. All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

■  • Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
■  CAP BMC Development Corporation

•  } ' '

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared-on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. • ■

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the

. Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

• Net assets without donor restrictions include net-assets that are not
subject, to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any'
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors. , ,

Net assets with, donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time.- Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has. stipulated- the funds be maintained in
perpetuity. • • .
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities. ^

The Organization had net assets with dpnor restrictions of $496,882 and $661,958 at-
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively (See Note 13).

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
^ nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income'taxes under Internal Revenue

■  Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by tax authorities for three

'  years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a, "C" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code.' The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset' and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounpng for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis-of the Company's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax'rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss.carryforwards available at February 29, 2024 and February
28,2023.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal income.taxes are
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings, and losses are included 'in the
partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns-with the State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the miriinrium threshojd for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in "the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.
I

NOTES TO CbNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Property ,

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value,
at the date of the donation. -Assets purchased vyith a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated

• useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates ■

The'preparation of consolidated financial statements in-conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date'of the consolidated financial, statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.r.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The-Organization- maintains its cash in, bank deposit accounts, which at times .may
exceed federally .insured limits. The-Organization has not experienced any losses in
such accounts.and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts. . • " '

Contributions

All contributions are^ considered to be available Tor unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

. Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that a/e not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
acconipanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur'under normal operating activities. The Organization received
$525,485,and $401,7.48 in "donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February'29,' 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively (See Note 16).

Advertising' • .
The;Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023 totaled $149,439
and $133,749, respectively.

Inventorv

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable .value, using the first-iri"; first-out method.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received froni conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and, conditions'are
incurred or-met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor imposed,stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Rental Revenue

. The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
.  ̂ recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due, and control of the

apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a'term of
one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the-lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership expects to
be entitled'to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the lease
will be expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activitiies have been presented in
the.,Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the. program services,, and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses'are charged .to each program, based on the direct expenses, incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.

Expense . Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
.Depreciation Actual assets, used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.  FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended February 29, 2024, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-
13, Financial InstrumentSTQredit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit
losses on certain financial instrurnents. The Organization adopted this new guidance
utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did
not have a material impact on the Organization's financial statements.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS
Accounts receivable are staled a't the, amount management expects to collect .from
balances outstanding afyear end., .The Organization uses historical loss'information as
the basis to determine expected credit losses .for receivables and believes the
composition of receivables at year end is consistent with historical conditions. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023. The Organization has no policy for charging
interest on overdue accounts. . ■ -

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundatjie advances and recognized as
revenue in , the period in which the related services or-expenditures are performed-or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$704,973 and $1,817,3.40 as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively.

4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The-following represents the Organiption's financial assets as of February 29,'2024
n and February 28, 2023: ̂ '

2024 2023

Financial assets at year end:
■  Cash $ 786,672 :$ 1,711,575
Accounts receivable 3,691,075 6,027,912
Investments' 151,171 .128,956
Cash reserves 140,167 74,847
Cash escrow 3.124 2.481

Total financial assets 4.772.209 7,945.771

Less amounts not available to be used within one year: - ,
Net assets with donor restrictions 496,882 661,958
Reserve funds 140-.167 74.847

Amounts not available within one year ^ 637.049 736.805
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

i

Financial assets available to meet general
' expenditures over the next twelve months $ '4.135.160 $ 7.208.966

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $5,370,000 .and $10,200,000, at February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023, respectively. The Organization has lines of credit with a combined
$99,917 and $700,000, available to borrow on at February 29, 2024 and February 28,
2023, respectively. ,. , ' . '

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan'which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense, of the plan for the year ended February 29, 2024 and
February 28,'2023 totaled $212',693 and $209,878, respectively.

6. LEASED FACILITIES .

The right of use (ROU) asset-represents the Organization's right-to use underlying
-assets for the lease term, and the lease liability represents the Organization's obligation
to make lease payments arising from, these' leases. The ROU asset and lease liability,
all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of
future lease payments over the lease'terms. The Organizationi has elected to discount
future cash flows at the risk free borrowing rales commensurate with the lease terms,
which was 1.8%. Common expenses, classified as occupancy , costs in the
accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as cosls are incurred. The Organization's operating
leases are described below. ^

'  f-

The weighted average lease term at February 29, 2024 is 7.82 years. The weighted
average discount rate at February 29, 2024 is 1.80%.

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease'terms range frorri month to month to ten
years. For the year.ended February 29, 2024 and February .28,"2023, the annual lease
expense for the leased facilities was $637,428 and $586,539, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

The approximate future minimum lease payments as of February 29, 2024 on-the above
leases are as follows:

Year Ended Amount

2025 $ 329,677

2026 ■ '129,652
2027 111,327

■ 2028 ; 95,857
'  2029 ' 95,857
Thereafter 466.548'

■  " 1,228,918 ■ ■

■ Less imputed interest ■ 92.104

Total $ 1-.136.814

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization,has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $701,231 and $691,684'at
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, .respectively. The policy allows for a
maximum of 50 days to be carried over to the next fiscal year, however, upon
termination only two weeks will be paid out. The *tvi/o week liability' is $304,049 and
$285,599 at February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively. -

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line, of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (8.50% and 7.75% at February 29, 2024 and
February 28'; 2023/respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line'^is
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $101,500 outstanding
at.Februaiy 29, 2024. There was no balance outstanding:at February 28, 2023.

, The Organization has'a $.500,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line)" with a
. bank that is due on'demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (8.50% and 7.75% at February 29, 2024 and
^February 28, 2023, respectively). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was a balance of $498,583 outstanding at February 29, 2024. There was no
balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.

Subsequent to year end, the $200,000 line increased to $500,000.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.
*  ̂ - .. .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'  FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the' year ended ' February 29, 2024, approximately $15,400,000 (46%), and
$7,000,000 (21%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Agriculture. For the
year ended February 28, 2023, $18,300,000 ,(29%), and $32,000,000 (51%), of the
Organization's total revenue was .received from the Department of Health and Human
Services and the Department of.Treasury, respectively. The future scale and nature of
the Organization is dependent upon^continued support from these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, .
2023;

.  * 2024 2023

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in. .
monthly installments'for principal and interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
property.of the Organization. - ■ $ 202,481 '$ 210,560

'5.75% note payable to a financial institution- in
monthly installments -for principal and interest of
$13,912. The note.was paid.in full during the year
ended February 29,2024. - 71,040

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. .The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency adrninistrative building renovations. ■ / 27,164 , 35,179

7.00% note payable'to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and Interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The, note .is secured .by a first real ^tate'mortgage
and assignment of rents .and - leases on' property
located in Concord,- New Hampshire for Early Head
•Start. : _ 5,016 ■ 65,076

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in monthly "installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. , 106,604 ■ 187,615
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11.

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership, to New Hampshire • Housing
deferred until'June 1, 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced.or surplus cash is available/The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate. 340.042 341.922

Total long-term debt before unamortized
financing cost

deferred

681,307 " 911;392

Unamortized deferred financing costs (4.838) (5.320)

>

Less amounts due within one year
676,471

111.255

906,072

' 237.926

Long term portion 5L_ 565.216 S- 668.146

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 29, 2024 were as follows:

Year Endina
'  *

Amount

'' , , 2025 $  111,255
f  ̂

2026 27,000
2027 18,294
2028 . 11,767'
2029 • .. ■ 10,640

Thereafter 502.351

$  681.307

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property'and equipment consisted of the following.as of February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023:

2024 .2023

Land $  279,340 $  -279,340
Building and improvements 7,437,883 7,347:874
Equipment ̂and vehicles 4,623,986 4,762,497
Construction in process

- 132.920

12,341,209 'l2.522;631
Less accumulated depreciation 6.053.895 6.165.156

Property and equipment, net $ 6.287.314' $ 6.357.475
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 29, 2024 and February 28, '2023
totaled $569,334 and $597,185, respectively.

12. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant fundirig from various sources.-Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required^to use the^funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws ahd regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization

' might be required to 'repay the funds. No provisions have been;, made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have-not been determined or assessed
as of February 29, 2024.

13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023:

.

2024 2023

NH Food Pantry Coalition , $ 663 $  663
Senior center 138,549 142,251
Elder services .  10,715 "143,046
Mary Gale . 38,130
Summer feeding 14,488 20,503
Caring fund .8,793 8,793
Agency - FAR > 50,550 60,9.13
Agency Head Start 153,780, 177,872

, Agency - FP/PN 69,329 69,329
Rundraising ' 46,999
Other programs,and fundraising 3.016 '458

Total net assets with donor restrictions , $ 496.882 $  661.958
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNA'P^ MERRIIV1ACK COUNTIES. INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F=INANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization serves as the management agent,for theTollowing organizations:

Related Partv Function

Belmont Elderly Housing,-Inc. ' HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD ProjDerty
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property^
Pernbroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing; Inc. ' HUD Property ■
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. ,HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporatiori . HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax

'Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization..included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property. ^ •

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
29, 2024 and February 28, 2023 was $335;878 and $268,293, respectively, and is
included in accounts receivables. ■ -

15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds

■ totaled $151,171 and $128,956 at February 29^ 2024 and FebruaiV 28, 2023,
respectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10,.Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a niarket-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurernent, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques con'sistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant

.assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 ..establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority, to Level"3
measurements: The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC '820 are
described as follows: :
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than'quoted market
prices in active markets, \which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
.  ' situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability

,and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk'

At February 29, 2024 and Februiary 28, 2023, the Organization's investments were
classified as Level 1 and were based,on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs fLevel ̂ )

2024 2023 .

Beginning balance - mutual funds
Total gains - mutual funds

Ending balance - mutual funds

128,956 $ , 138,793
22:215 (9.8371

$  151.171 $ 128.956

The carrying amount of cash; current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
.  approximates fair-value because of the short maturity of those instruments. *

16. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICfeS
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the accounting
policies described in Note 1;

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the financial statements'and the
corresponding program expenses for the year ended FebruaV29, 2024 and February
28, 2023, is as follows:

Volunteer hours

Head Start and Early Head Start
SCSEP

Rental space
Advertising
Donated goods

Total

2024

263,727

13,852

173,339

.63,050

11,517

2023

117,171

88,700

146,026

15,960

33.891

$ 525.485 S 401.748
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

17. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Organization experienced a decrease in several financial indicators during the year ended
February 28, 2024. These.included but are not limited to a decrease in cash, loss from
operations and cash used in operating activities.

Management has been actively working on improving the financial position of the Organization.
Management has reduced indirect staff positions, reduced vacancies in the housing entities,
reduced square footage of rental space and is "meeting monthly to review budgets and cut costs.

• Management Is confident that their efforts will improve the financial position over the next year.

18. RECLASSIFICATION .

Certairi amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year. '

19.- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent'events through November 14, 2024^^ the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

, FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal, awards* (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Cpmmunity Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 29, 2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of title 2 U.S. .Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit'

• Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is'not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization..

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
"accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following .the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable.or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. "

NOTE 3 , INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected to use
the ten percent de-.^minirfiis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance. v

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally-accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller. General of the United "States, the financial,
statements of. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. -(a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 29, 2024, and
the related statements of activities, functional :experises, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 14, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of "expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of -Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a tirnely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combjnation of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there js a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis..A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or'a
combination of deficiencies, in'internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal contrpi was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies..Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we,consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies'may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of'obtaining reasonable assurance about whkher Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with whjch could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statement's. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
cornpliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the drganizalion's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any ojher purpose. . ..

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors , ,
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the' types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and rriaterial effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended, February 29, 2024.
Conrimunity Action Program Belknap-Merrirfiack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in'the.summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. •.

In our opinion, Comnnunity Action Prograni Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all-
rnaterial respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
29,2024. '

' Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing staridards generally
. accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to, financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General-of the United
States; and the audit requirements of-Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative..Requirerhents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform

• Guidance are further described, in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to,meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to- our audit. We believe^that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion ori compliance for each major
federal program. Our audjt does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Mianagement is responsible for cornpliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
•agreements applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abo,ut whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements'^referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion; on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and ihe Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance-when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material-noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
' fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

■of internal-control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood lhati individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence-the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report oh compliance about
Community Action^ Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

f

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and '.maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. .

•  Identify and assess the risks of^material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
.  and design and'perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence, regarding Corhmunity Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit,
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the-Uniform Guidance,,but not for the

,  purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Prograrti
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.^

We are.required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the- planned scope"and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
rnaterial weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal,course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency,- or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
'over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal prograni'that is less severe
than a material,weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for'the limited-purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the.Audit of Compliance section above and,was not designed
to identify .'all deficiencies in'jnternal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over-'compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did,not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist.that have
not been.identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on lhe effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no;such opinion is expressed. ,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
, our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this'-report is not suitable for any other
purpose. - . .

It

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024

i
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2024

summary OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an'unmodified opinion on whether the financial'statements
of'Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were' prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating»to the'audit of the financial statements are reported In
the Independent Auditors'. Report on. Internal Control Over Financial Rep'orting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over nhajor federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report'on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Cornpliance Required by the'Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses.are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs. ■

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
■  section200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include: U.S. Department, of the-Treasury,
Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; U.S. Department of. Health and

'Human Services, Low Income-Home'Energy Assistance Program,^ ALN 93.568, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Food Distributiori Cluster, ALN 10.565, 10.568, 10.569, U.S.
■Department of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Income-Persons, ALN 81.042.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and 8 progranis was $864,306.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Effective 3/2025

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMAGK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
E'M P'OWERING, COMMUNITIES SINCE 19 "6 5

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chris Pyles, Chair
Board member since; 1/14/2021

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001'

Safiya Wazir, Vice Chair^
■Board membersince:,11/2/2016

Nancy Mayville
Board member since: 3/13/2025

A. Bruce Carri, Treasurer
Board membersince: 3/12/2020

"Ashley Reed - ' .
Board member since: 5/12/2022

<

Dennis Martino', Secretary
Board member-sirice: 2/2A/2005

David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Heather Brown
Board membersince: 1/15/2009

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

David Croft
Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/25 - 2/28/26} board meetings - 3/13/25, 5/8/25,.9/11/25,11/13/25,1/8/26

klhiCAPBM BOD 4,2025 redacted



NH Department of Health and Human Services
u  ̂ , %

KEY PERSONNEL

f  . • ^

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

'  Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name:' Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

JeanneAgri Chief Executive Officer ^ $0.00 $145,916.00

Michael Tabory Chief Operating Officer $0.00 $119,900.00

Jill Lesmerises Chief Fiscal Officer $0.00 _ $108,927.00

Ken Boyer
Director Housing Rehabilitation" & Energy
Conservation

$36,010.00 $88,495.00

[ •  '



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE
1  * t •

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills:, written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National OtTlce of Head Start to

serve as a mentor for new Head Stait Directors. Committed to continuous improveinent of activitie.s'to ensure they meet
outcomes approved by the board through sb-ategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all

local, sta\e and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Chief. Executive Ofi'icer 2018-present

. • Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress'towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
•program and,financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial,policies and procedures are adhered to.

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board_ , ,

•  Establish sound, working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and ail funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed.and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH .
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016-2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;'
•delegation of tasks and accountabilities • 'r'

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
s. plans „ ' . .

Director of Child DevNopment Programs 2001-2016
• - Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and

improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices ' ' .

Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and .
-Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systerns to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with. Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation



•  Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the ,
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

• ̂ Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  'Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

^  . •

education, and other community agencies and partners

Ensure adequate systems in placeto maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001
Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,
milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices

•. Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations _ .
•  Developed and'implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with

Governing Board, Policy Council
•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to'present it in meaningful oral or written form for

varied audiences.and provide reliable^analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
r  Supervision .of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers

-  • Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards.educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards

•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance
Improvement Plans when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995-1997
•  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual .

needs of staff members and the team as a whole'

•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor . , , - 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education ^ ^



MICHAEL TABORY.

SUMMARY OF QUALTFTCATTONS

Over 20 years of demonstrated leadership in non-profit, corporate, and consulting management and
supervisory roles, including Human Resources, Inforrnation Management &. Technology. Infrastructure,
Project Management, Operations Management, and Sales Marketing Management;

HIGHLIGHTS

■  Strong decision making and multi-tasking • Strong anaJ3^ical and problem solving skills,
skills in a dynamic business environment. ■ Demonstrated skills in business process

■  Effective utilizing a Strength Based approach analysis, requirements definition and project
to leadership and management through the scoping for S9ftware solutions and
identification of strengths, qualities and skills implementation.
of individuals. ■ Proven experience'managing compliance with

■  Excellent verbal and written communications. Federal and State program regulations,
skills in a business environment. ■ Open minded, with a positive attitude.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTlES/lNCl'

PO Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 ' October 2018 - Present
Chief Operating Officer
■  Assists the Chief Executive Officer in the financial management, operations management and

^  execution of the mission of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
■  Works closelywith the Chief Executive Officer and in partnership with the entire staff, to ensure

the smooth operation" of the organization's key day-to-day functions.
■  Oversees the personnel structure of the Agency and ensures compliance with federal, state and local

laws and regulations and agency personnel policies.
■  Develops collaborative professional relationships with.other Agency staff, community-based

providers and regulatory/funding sources. ^
■  Performs pro^am oversight and management, including interviewing, hiring, scheduling, training,

supervising, evaluating and developing subordinate staff, and resolving employee problems; assigns
tasks to maximize individual and team performance; ensures compliance with Agency policies and
procedures. • ,

■  Provides oversight and leadership'of Agency'technology infrastructure, and works with Chief
Executive Officer "to develop facilities grown <

■  Assists-Board of Director subcornmittees with their role in planning, monitoring and evaluating the
Agency's programs. . , • ,

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES

PO Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108 ' August 2006 - October 2018
Human Resources Director (March 2009 - October 2018)
■  Manage all agency Human Resource office functions.

•  Responsible for ensuring compliance with all Federal'and NH State labor law,'including but not
limited to ADA, FMLA, FLSA,'Anti-Discrimination, wage and hour.

■  Work with leadership team in the ongoing development, review ahd revision of agency Personnel
Policies.



■  Provide leadership, guidance, and training to agency directors, managers and supervisors
regarding hiring, .performance management, discipline action and employment termination.

•  Recommend and assist in coordination of technology infrastructure, including mission critical
information management software solutions, telecommunications, and connectivity."

■  Introduced and led the implementation process of migrating the agency's Human Resource '
Management and Payroll to a cloud based solution. ■ ' '

•  Defined, designed and led the implementation of the agency intranet (iNet).' Maintain content of
iNet and provide technical'support to agency website content and site maintenance..

■  Coordinate purchase requisition and receiving for all agency technology purchases including
.  computers, tablets, software, and printers to ensure consistency and compatibility of products

placed on our network, and support by MIS department.
■  Participate in.agency insurance renewal decisions and rnaintenance, including Health, Vision,

Dental, Property and Casualty, Directors and Officers, Workers Compensation...
•  Act as Safety Coordinator in conjunction with the agency Joint Loss Committee'.-
WIA Quality Assurance Manager and Statewide Monitor (August 2006 - March 2009)
■  Responsible for reviewing and ensuring eligibility and federal compliance of aill WIOA participants.
■  . Provide eligibility and data validation training to all WIA s'taiT.
■  Maintain WIA Operations Manual.
•  Contribute and review program grant submissions.
■  Responsible for on-site program monitoring of all WIA Career Navigators statewide including,

subcontracted CAP agencies to ensure program compliance with federal regulations.

THE .WILLIAM PALMER HOMESTEAD GROUP ^

PO Box 916, Milton, NH 03851 ■ 'November 2001 - August 2006
' Owner/Independent Consultant . '

•  Database and Website architecture, design, development, and maintenance.
■  Small and large scale Project Management. ^
■  Office workflow analysis. '
■  Graphic Design and Marketing Support.

A

CHORUSAM'ERICA. LLC

650 Islington Street,'Portsmouth, NH'03801 ' April 2001 October 2001
Project.Manager/Consultant & Business Development Manager ^ .
■  Responsible for all aspects of planning and managing implementation of eBusiness solutions for

Fortune 1000 companies, including resource allocation, budgeting, and rime management. '
■  Responsible'for working with clie'nts and developers to define Design Specifications, Project Scope,

and Project Plans.
■  Define Marketing campaigns; produce marketing collateral and customer communications,

presentations and corporate message. » •

PREFERRED CAPITAL CORPORATION

100 Main Street, Suite 150, Dover, NH 03820 March 1998 - January 2001 ̂
Credit Manager / Human Resources Manager / MIS Manager
•  Define and implemerit credit department policies and procedures for the New Harnpshire office.
■  Responsible for relationship and communication with national funding sources.,
• • Responsible for recruiting, interviewing, hiring, discipline and morale of office personnel. •
■  Responsible for definition and enforcement of company/policies and overall office operations.
■  Ensure smooth operation of office technology including, network, phone system, and end user

support. ' ̂ '

•  Provide Marketing Creative, Collateral and Support, Sales Statistics and Analysis.

CABLETRON SYSTEMS. INC. '

35 Industnal Way, Rochester, NH 03867 February 1992 - March 1996
SPECTRUM International Partners Program Manager
■  Provide marketing support and recruit new network techriolo^ manufacturers and vendors for

product integration with Cabletron's SPECTRUM. . '
■  Responsible for marketing and managing the Partners Program and its staff.' • ■ .
Software Engineer



■  Responsibilities include technical leadership and project coordination in multi-engineer and-cross-
departmentaJ projects.

■  Responsible for'all phases of development of mission critical information management
applications.

ADDraONAL EXPERIENCE

•  Town of Milton NH Zoning Board of Adjustment - Chairperson.

■  . Town of Milton NH Planning Board - Chairperson.^
■  Friends of the Milton Free Public Library {non-profit organization) - Chairperson.
■ • Over 10 years of customer service and sales experience and over 3 years of sales leadership.

■  Landlord - owner-occupied three-unit historic residence.
■  Greyhound PetS:0f America - volunteer and foster home.

EDUCATION

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

Portsmouth, NH - MBA coiirsework.

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Durham, NH ■ Bachelor of Science - Computer Science 1991

UNIVERSITY OF LANCASTER

Lancaster, Lancashire, England - Computer Science - 1987-1988



Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of

valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use rriy non-profit ,

experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,

bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit

preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension compliance and audit

preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21 - Present

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. ,

CAPBM is a not-for-profit,with 25 million In revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over.300

employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual

audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review

accounts payable ihput, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million in revenue with 30 legal

entities. The Agency has over 400 erriployees and holds 84 million in assets:

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for

annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various

funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for

accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various

governmental agencies; prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 4G3B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and
running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17 ' ,

Staff Accountant. Comnnunltv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

At the time of my employment, Community Action Program BelknaprMerrimack Counties was a not-for-
profit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepare'd work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts^ reviewed daily accounts payable input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts
payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00-9/02

Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, Inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 rrilllion in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and
cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

t

9/98-1/00

Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers . •

5/93 - 9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc.

Collected-past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,
handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared
journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Caring Community of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 millron in revenue. '

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,
coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Backsround

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University
Graduated cum laude

1992-1996 _

Associate Degree in Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985 , ; ' ,
Merrimack Valley High School.
Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work .

1/17-Present , ' ■ . ■

Director on The Loudon Communications Council ' ■

Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly nevyspaper to the residents of Loudon
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2

years.



CONTACT KENNETH BOYER
ENERGY EFFICIENCY B QUALITY CONTROL PROFESSIONAL

PROFILE

EDUCATION

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

COLLEGE 2006-2008

• ■ Associates in Applied Science '

in Building Construction c.

Technology

CERTIFICATIONS

• OSHA 10-Hour Construction

Safety and Health

• OSHA 30-HOUR Construction '

Safety and Health

• BPI Building Analyst-Technician

• BPI Building Analyst-Professional

• BPI Heating Professional

' • BPI HEP Energy Auditor

• BPI HEP Quality Control Inspector

• EPA/HUD RRP Certified Renovator

• NREL Multifamily Quality Control

Inspector t '

• Class 3 Forklift ,

SKILLS

• Leadership

• Training and mentoring new hires

• Project Management

• Effective Communication

• Teamwork .

• Energy Auditing

• Quality Control professional

• Proficient in Microsoft Suite

• Data tracking and data entry

• Creating and maintaining .vendor

relationships and contracts

Motivated and energetic VVeatherization -professional with 13 years'

experience in improving energy efficiency in homes of all income levels,

schools.'businesses. etc.

Dependable and outgoing, I am a trusted project and team leader with a

commitment to growth and accountability through exemplary leadership that
align with the company's goals and objectives..

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrlmack,

Concord, NH
2019-PRESENT

Energy Auditor and Quality Control Inpsector •;

•  Lead and manage 30+'ciieni projects focused on energy efficiency in
their homes '

• Maintain files and complete data entry using TREAT ASHRAE 62.2

and Compass (modeling, ventilation and CRM software)
•  Establishing and maintaining strong relationships within the

VVeatherization and Community Action network

• Quality Control inspector, inspection of completed installation and
client files within the agency to ensure adherence to DOE and utility

funding requirements

•  Review, collection and submission of contractor and vendor invoices

• Train and mentor new staff

Turn Cycle .Solutions LLC, Nashua, NH
Marketing Manager & Specialist •

2018-2019

Acquired BPI Building Analyst Certification; performed energy audits
throughout NH within the NHSaves VVeatherization Program

Vast knowledge of rebates and incentives available to residents in the state
Estimated project cost, as well as annual savings in both energy and
energy expenses

Managed scheduling, including audits, follow-up appointments and
inspections

Supervised and trained VVeatherization installers

Oversaw other duties as assigned, including but not limited to. material
inventory maintenance, client Intakes, field vyork. networking and outreach

and fleet maintenance

Energy Efficient Investments, Merrimack NH

Weatherization Tech .

2012-2018

Project leader and team member of insulation projects varying in single
family homes, to multifamily homes and commercial dwellings

Proficient in door and window treatment and the installation of 2-part spray

foam, 1-part spray foam, fiberglass and cellulose insulation

Ability to perforrh, lead and train others in cellulose preparation and

installation, ventilation, various air-sealing methods, suspended ceilings
and jobsite professionalism



I  STATE OF.NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMMISSIONER 1^,^ I ' TOO Access: Relay NH
Jared S. Chlcolne I 1-600-735-29W

■4
_  Tel. (603) 271-3670OEPUTV C:0MM1SSI0NER E8@^8l5®

ChrtstopherJ. Ellms. Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

VlfebsHe:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.eiwfly.nh.gov
21 S. FmitSL. Suite 10

Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

June 12,2024

His Excellenc)', Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to amend a SOLE SOURCE contract with
Communit>' Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., Concord, NH, Vendor #177203, by extending
the expiration date from June 30,2024 to June 30, 2025, for the Wcatherization Assistance Program's Sustainable
Energy Resources for Consumers grant, effective upon Govemcw and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on Januaiy 31,2024, Item #65. No additional
funding is requested. 100% Federal Funds.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance (10 CFR
440.15) giving Communitj' Action Agencies preferred status for the W AP due to their non-profit status, their role
providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering W AP.

The Department applied for and received this competitively awarded Sustainable Energ>' Resources for
Consumers (SERC) grant, funded through the USDOE's Weatherization Assistance Program. Per the
Department's application and the terms of this award, funds will be used to install 18 solar photovoltaic (PV)
arrays on the roofs of eligible single to four-unit dwellings, along with 14 heat pump water heaters (KPWHs) in
the Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties teiriioiy , which consists of Belknap and
Merrimack Counties.

The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will contribute to the installation of heat pumps and/or PV
arrays in approximately 32 homes in central New Hampshire.

The Department is requesting this extension to allow for the SERC funds to be fully spent out in PY24.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

tespectfully/Bubmitted,

Uared Chicoii
Commissioner



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New
Hampshire Department of Energy (Dcpartmenr), 21 S. Fruit Street, Stc. 10, Concord. NH 03301,
(hereinafter referred to as State) and Community Action Program BcUcnap-Mcnimack Counties,
Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the Contractor), collectively referred to as (the Parties).

WHEREAS, the Panics have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on January 3!, 2024 Item #65 (hereinafter referred to as the Contract);

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend and amend the Contract as provided in this
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed
by both Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
. contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

! • Amendment and Modification of Contract. The Contract Is amended and
modified as follows: ,

A) Section 1.7, Completion Date, P-37/G-I ofihe existing Contract/Gram
Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following: June 30, 2025.

B) Exhibit B: Amend Paragraph 2, deleting Program Year 2023 (PY23) in the
first sentence and the date of June 30, 2024 in both the first and second
sentence, and inserting in place thereof Program Year 2024 (PY24) and
the date June 30, 2025 in both the first and second sentence.

C) Exhibit B: Amend Paragraph 4, deleting PY23 in the first sentence and
inserting in place thereof PY24.

D) Exhibit B: Amend Paragraph 6, deleting PY23 in the third sentence and
inserting in place thereof PY24.

E) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2025."

F) Exhibit E: Amend period covered by this certification to "From date of
approval by the NH Governor and Executive Council through June 30,
2025."

2  Effective Date of Amendment: This Amendment shall take effect upon
Govemor and Executive Council approval.

Award No. DE'EE00099I6; Federal Award Dale: 07/01/2022 Conirtclor Iniiials 7^7"
CFDA No. 81.042 Date 04/25/2024
Community Action Program Belknap Merrimack Counties. Inc. Page ) of 2 I



3. Continuance of Contract. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in
full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract

as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands on the dates written below.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Bv: ^ Date: 04/25/2024
Michael Tabofy, Chief Operating Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Energy

r Date:

S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Approval by the Attorney GeneraPs Office (Form, Substance and Execution)

CkhStopkei^ 6. Daw: 5/13/2024
Print Name and Title Christopher G. Aslin, Senior Assistant Attorney General

I

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

JUN 1 2 202^ ^ LG&C Meeting Date: O&C Iterh #: ^

SECRETARY OF STATE

Award No. DE-EE00099I6". Federal Award Date: 07/01/2022 Contractor Initials 7^ /
CFDA No. 81.042 Date 04/25«)24

Community Action Program Betknap Merrimack Counties, Inc. Page 2 of 2 2



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Dovid M. Scanlan. Sccretao" of Siaic ofihc Siaic ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM 8ELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprotli Corporation registered

to transact busirvess in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965. 1 turther certify that all fees and docunwiits required by the Secretary of

State's ofllce have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 6J02I

Ccrtiftcatc Number: 0006656579

%

>
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s
o •w

A
%
%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be atllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.O. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretarv of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
, wm BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂

|c9 6MPOW6ftl viG COMMUNITIES SiNCe I96S

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I - Christopher J. Pvles. Chair. Board of hereby certify that;

1 ■ I am a duly elected officer of Communitv Action Prooram Betknao-Merrrmack Counties Ine

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on P(1flrch 14, ̂ 0^4, at which a quorum of (he Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michaet Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy D/racfor. JUI Lesmerises, Chief Hacet Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Butfget Anaiyst Christopher J. pyies. Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Communitv Action Prooram Belknao-Merrimacfc Countiea inc to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any and aD documerits. agreements and other
instnmTents. and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
Judgment be desirable or necessaiy to effect the purpose of Ihis vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amerxled or repealed and remains In full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from
the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(8) listed above currently occupy
the positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, ail such (Imitations are expressly stated herein.

Oated: 4/16/2024 Signature of Elected Officer
_  ̂
Chair. BoardTdie ectors

Mulin* Addru* P.O. Box 1016. Concord, NH 03302 Admini«rative Office 2 Industnai Park Drive. Concord NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 j I 800 856-5523 mVTDD 1 800 73^2964 F«x: 603.228-1898

Webtiie: capbm.org



CORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATC (MWDCWrrrj

01/03/2024 ■
THIS CeRTlFlCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTTFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATTVELV OR NEOATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERACE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER/S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATWE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANTi If th« MfOflcaW hoktof It tn ADDITIONAL INSURED. Ih« poilcy(lM} must hav ADOfTIONAL INSURED pwWoof or be «ndortML
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MtuMXA- S«>eetNa Insurance Co. o< so 19299
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CommunMy Aedon Program Bcilinap-Werrtmaek Cevnttea Inc.
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COfXord NH 03302

HMRsaa: DfaMia State Heanh care and Human Services Sell-

Mswwnci PaOaratlneCo 20261
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Msunai:
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KlS tS TO CCRTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF iNSURAffCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO TmE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PCUCY PERlOO
IWCATEO. NOTWTTHSTANOING ANY REOUIREMEKT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATB MAY BE tSSUEO OR MAY PERTAIN. TME INSURANCE AFFORDED BY TME POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL TME TERMS
XCLUSlONS AND CONOITIOHS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAC CLAIMS.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSfONEfl
J«r«d S. CAicoine / /O 1 TOO Accms: Relay NH

l-(0O-73S-2Se4
A

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER IHSS^Swra. Tel. (603) 271.M70
Clwblophef J. Eftna Jr.

FAXNo.27i.t5J6

OePARTMENT OF ENEROV www.enef5y.ftn.90v
21 S. Foiii St., Suite 10

Concord, N.H. 0S301-2429

Januao' 31. 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New I lampshirc iX'partmcnt of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Communit>- Action Program Bclknap-Mcrtimack Counties Inc
Vendor #177203, Concord.^NH. in the amount of $481,327 for the federal Weatheriiation
Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon Governor and Exccuiive Council approval throuuh
June 30,2024. 100% Federal Funds. . "i k t

hunds arc available in the accounting unit Low Income Wealherlzation as follows:

FY 20*^4
O2-52-52-5205I0-33560000-074-.S00587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $481,327

explanation

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of F.nerg\ "s (USDOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the WAP due
to their non-prolit status, their role providing a range of serv ices to clients eligible for the WAP
and thci^r histonca! performance delivering WAP. In addition, the tcrm.s of this competitively '
awarded grant require the Department to contract with Communit)' Action Prouram Dclknao-
Memmack Counties, Inc. "

The Department applied for and received this competitively awarded Sustainable Encrgv
Resources for Consumers (SERC) grant, funded through the USDOE^s Wcaiherization
Assistance Program. Per the Department's application and the terms of tliis award, fund.s will be
used to install 18 solar photovoltaic (PV) arrays on the roofs of eligible single to four unit
dwellings along with 14 heat pump water heaters (HPWHs) in the Community Action Program
Belknap-Memmack Counties territory, which consists of Delknap and Merrimack Counties.

The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will contribute to the installation of heat
pumps and/or PV arrays in approximately 32 homes in central New Hampshire.



His Excellcac>-. Governor Chmropher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Jonuv)'31,2024
Pa){e 2 of 2

In ihe event Federal Funds are no longer available. General Funds will nol be requcsled to
support this contract.

L
Rcspccifull)^«i|^notted,

Ns.

// Jared Chtcoinc
1/ Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venioa 1/33/3023)
tlfiiiSfi: Thi, and .Jl of iu ,h.ll Ucome public upon .uhmiiiion to Co«mor «id

*  private. conndwtUl Of propfictiiymiuibe cittriy identified to the agency and lyced to in writing prior tojignins contn«.

AOREEMEfTTTUc State of New Hampshire and the ConrrKtor hereby tnuixiilly ayee as followi:
general provisions

l.l State Agency Name

Depanment of Energy 21 S. Fruit St. Sie. 10. Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Centreclor Name

Conunuttiiy Aciton Protram BeUcAap^Mernmock Counties. Inc. 1.4 CoTMricior Addrcai —

POBo.t 1016. Concord. NH 03302-1016

1.5 Ceotractor Phone 1 i.s Account Unit and Ctajs
- Number j

(603)325O3P3 I \ -

1.7 Cofflpleiion Date

June 30. 2024

l.l Pricf Ltmlmion

S4II,327.00

1.9 Contnaiog OfTicer for State Agency
Ki/k Stone. Weatherixation Piofram Maroger i.lO State Agency Telephone N

60)-27|.3670
limber

l.l Ki^oniraclor Signature

Die 01/02/3524

L^( ~

1.12 Natneooti Title ofContrtctor Sigrtatory

Michael Tabory. Chief Operating Office

1.14 Name and Titfe of State Agency Sipiatory

Ja/ed S. Chicotne. Commissioner

ApptOrcl by the N.H. Ikparrrtent or Admmutntion. Division of Pcnorwel (i/applkabl*)

'  ®'' Oireetof, Ott:
1.16 Appro vel by ̂ ^p^^Ccneral (Form. Subitance and ExKution) (ifeppfieebtt)

^  On- '"^'2024
1.17 Approval by and Eiccutive Council OfeppUcabit)

(,5 SECREIARYLfiiE STATE 3 /
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Sialc of Ncm-
Hampjhifc,'acciftg through the egenc>- Wendncd in block 1.1
(••State"), engagei contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Conlraciof")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods. Of bolh. identified and more particularly described in the
anachcd EXHIBIT B which is incorporated lierein by reference
("Services").

y effective DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
J.I Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this AgieemcrtJ, and all oOKgations of the parties hereunder. shall
become efTective on the date the Governor and Executive C^dl
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is requited, in
which case the Agrecmem shall becotnu cITeciive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Comrocior commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this ̂ recment does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
hmitation. any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
itKurfed or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by Uie Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

J. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
ail obligations ofthe Sine hereunder. including. wiUioui limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds, (n no event shall
the State be liable for any payment] hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of a^ropriated ftmds by any stale or federal legislative
or e.xecutive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in pan.
the State shall have the right to withhold pj>Tnent until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
rcmsinatc the Services under this Agreement immediaiciy upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tcrminaf ion. The
State shall not be required to tran.ifer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Accou.it arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CO.NTRaCT price/price LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 "nsc contract prkc, method of payment, and terms of pavmcnl
are identified and more particularly described in F.XIII8IT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and norwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
evcnc shall the loul of alt payments authorized, or acruaily made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitaiioh set forth in block !.g. The
payment by the Sute of the cootraci price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Controctor for oil expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Coniracior in the performance

Award No. DE.EE00099I6

CFOA No. 81.042
Community Action Program Belknap Mcrrimaek Counties, Inc.

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for (he Sei vices.
5.3 The State reserves (lie right to ofTser from any amount.s
otherwise payable to ilie Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amnunli rcqtiircd or pcrmiped by N.M. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
3.4 Tlie State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. Ihe Contractor
agrees that It has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. compliance nv contractor WITH LAWS and
regulations/equal employment
opportunity.
6j In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and ordcts of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Conuactor. including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
cmployrncni opportunity laws and the Covcmor's order on Respect
and Civility m the Workplace. Executive order 2020-01. In
adtJition. if this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
Uniictl .States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations anti guidelines as the Slate or the United Stales Issue to
intplemeni these regulations. The Cotitfactof shall also comply
with oil applicoble intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age. sex. sc.xual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will ukc affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
fedetal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontracton
comply with these nondiscriminailon fequirementi.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contrtctor or its
representatives in conncvtion with this Agreement have or shall be
made tvhich have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the Start or United Stales,
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the putpose of wccriaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations i.id ordcn pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this .Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable' lows.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to (his
Agreement.

Initial
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8. EVENT or DEKAUI T/REMEOIES.
8.1 Any one or more of rhe following acts or omljsioni of the
Coiiiraclor shall constioite an eveni of default hereunder ("Hvcni
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perfonn (he Services-saiisfactorily or on schedule;
8.12 failure to submil any report required hereunder; ond.'or
8.1.3 failure lo perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the oecurrcocc of any Evert! of Default, the State ntay
take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contnctor a written notice specifying the F.vcni of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar daj-s
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Det^uic is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
afUr giving (he Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifyi.tg the Rvcnt of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during ihc period from
the date of such notice until such time as (he State deCcrmtnc.i that
the Contractor hu cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor';
8.2,3. give the Conrractor a written notice .specifying the Event of
Default and set off againsi any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contnctor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Deftuli; and/or
8.2.4 give.thc Contractor a written notice specifying the Emu of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, (erminatt the Agrccmcm
arid pursue any of its remedies ai law or in equity, or both.

9. termination.
9.1 Notwiihsunding paragraph 8, the State may. at Its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
pan.'by thirty (30) calendar days written notice lo the Contractor
that (he State is exercising hs option to terminate the Agrtemcin.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the Contracting OITicer.
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date cf
lerrnmation. a report ("Termmation Report") describing in dciiil
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination, fn addition, at the State's
diKreticn, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termmation. develop and submit to the State o
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
Slate, or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose under ihis
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, "and shall be returned
to ihe State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, infotmation and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 9I.A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the Slate.

M. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of ihij Agreement ihe Conrractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neiiher an agent nor an employee of
ihe State. Neither the Contractor nor any of Its officers, employees,
egcnis or members shall have authority to bind (he State or receive
any bcnefiis. workers' compenution or other emolumems
provided by the Stole to its employees.

12. A.SSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the wrincn consent of the State.

12 2 for purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Connor means (a) merger,
consolidation; or a uansaciioo or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its ifTiliatcs, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Conrractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
iviihoul prior writien notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement,'the word "Property" shaU mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or .developed by reason of, ihit
Agreement, including, but no* limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rep^uciions. drawings, analyses, graphic
represenuiions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Conrractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, iu officers, and employees
fiom and 'against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable anomcys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement direciiy or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intcHtctual property
infringement, or oiher claims asserted against the State, iis officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willftjl misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incuned by the Coniroctof arising imder this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained ^all be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which Immunity is hereby reserved to the
State; This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement. ,
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14. INSURANCE.

M.I The ConfTBClor shsll, ai its sole c.xpcnsc, obtain and
coniinuously maintain tn force, and shall require any subcuncracior
or assignee to ubciin and maintain in force, the following
in.turance:

14.1.) commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injuty. death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
Sl.000.000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.3 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subptragrtph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
tO^ of the «4tole replacement value of ilie Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagmph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and cndorsemeou appruvetl for use in the State of
New Kanipshirc by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in (he State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Cenrraciing Ofliccr
identified In block 1.9. or any successor, a cenificatcfs) of
insurance for all Insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request ofthe Contrictlog OfTicer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide ccrtificaicfs) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The cerxjficaiefs) of
insurance end any renewals thereof shall be itiached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrant-s that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. R5A chapter 281-A r^^'orken'
Comptnjalion "J.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 28I<A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and mamuin, payment of
Workers" Compensation in connection with aciiviiies which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish (he Contracting Officer idcniified in block
1.9. Of any successor, proof of Worken" Compensailun in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281'A and any applicable
rcnewalt's) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Conimctor, which might vise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services utvder this Agreement.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
dbcharged only by an insmtmcni tn writing signed by the parties
liereiu and only after approval of such amendmem, waiver or
dwchargc by the Governor and E.xecuiive Council of the Stale of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW and FORUM.
19.1 This .Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and consimcd
in eceofdance with the laws of the Slate of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express (heir mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising oul of this Agreement, including the
hieach or alleged bre-jch thereof, ttijy not be submitted to binding
orbimtion, but mu.tt, in.xiead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
iiu\'C exclusive jufisdictioti (licicof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confjicl between
the terms of this P-37 form (a.s modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement itKluding |ny attachments thereto,
the terms ofthe P07 (us modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARnF.S. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and (he words cootained therein shall in
no way be held tu explain, modifj-, iraplify or aid in the
■interpretation, consiruciion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

25. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modilying
provuions set forth in the inachcd EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such lUnher actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
end give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of (his Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of (he right of (he Slate to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subscqtKni breach.

25. SCVERAHILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a coun of cotitpetent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in fijll force and efTcci.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a parry hereto to the other party shall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
be darned to have been duly delivered or given at the time of executed in a number of countcrparu. each of which shall be
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 understanding between the panics, and supcraedes all prior
and 1.4, herein. agreements and understandings with respect to the subject maner

hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

isPEClAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 doted February I, 2002
(Weathcrlzalion Assistance Program), the New Hampshire Weathcrization Assistance
Program State Plan, Weatherization Assistance Program Policies and Procedures and
Field Guide arc all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. The NH Department of Energy (Department) reserves the right to use any legal
remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to. disallowance of costs, withholding of
funds, suspension of agency personnel, disbanneni of agency jicrsonnel, disbanncnlof
agencies and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other legai
remedies as determined to be appropriotc by the Department in the enforcement of rules
and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization AssisUnce Program.

2. An audit .shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2
CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of
revenues and expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the
Contractor s fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to
choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include o schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the cunenl status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all
management letters written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be
forwarded to the Department within one month of the time of receipt by the Coniraelor
accompanied by an acfion plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

V

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 6 of the general provision.^:

"6.5 All negotiated contracts (except those of S5.000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantce
Shalt allow the NH Department of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of the
United Stales, or any duly authorized representatives, access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Subgrantce or their subcontractors, which arc directly pertinent
to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcription."

4. In paragraph 9 of the general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: "The
form, subject matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be
identical to those of any Final Report described in EXHIBIT A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be dciermined as allowable under the cost
principles deuilcd'in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cosi Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the
Contractor .for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or,
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for awards that are renewed quarterly'or annually, from the date of the submission ofthc
quarterly or annual financial report, as stated In 2 CFR 200.334 -- Retention
Requirements for Records.

7. This is not a Research and Development (R«S:D) award. The Depanment's indirect cost rate
is 10 pereeiit.

8. Kirk Stone, Wcathcrizaiion program Manager at the Department, has been designated
with the responsibility for overseeing this contract.

9. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL, FUNDLNG. U is understood and agreed between
the parties that no ponion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining
additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized
under that law.

10. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed:
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Ccnificaiion Regarding
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Dcbarmcnt, Suspension and Other Responsibility

.. Mottcrs; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliani:c;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscriminalion in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

11. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK .ACT. AJI contracts and subgrants in excess of
$2,000.00 for construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with
Copcland "Anti-Kickback'' Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented In Department of Labor
Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each contractor, subcontract or
subgrantee shall be prohibited from Inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any pan of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the Department.

12. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpan D
- Post Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on
financial procurement (2 CFR 200 .Suhpan F - Audit Requirements) and property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property
Standards).

13. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement rcque.sts
shall be submitted to the State within 60 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7):

14. In accordance with New Hampshire Executive Order No. 2023-05, boycotting Israel shall
be grounds for termination of the contract.
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Community Action Program Dclkjiap-Mcrrimack Counties. Inc., hereinafter ''the
Contractor," agrees to install solar PV arrays, HPHJW equipment, and all additional
services and other work necc.ssary to provide Wcatherization Assistance Program (WAP)
services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with the regulations set forth by
the U. S. Dcpajimcnt of Energy in 10 CFR 440 dated February I,2002.and in2CFR200
as amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the most
recent New Hampshire Wcatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan.
Policies and Procedures Manual, Field Guide, and as otherwise administered by the
Department.

Periodically the Department may issue Subgraniee Guidance (SO) and Subgrantcc
Notices (SN) or other management and/or guidance clarirication.s a.s necessary. All such
changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NK Weaihcrizaiion Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Contractor agrees to alter the Program
procedures in accordance with a SO. SN or other instructions.

The Contractor agrees to abide by changes in the NH Wcatherization Assistance Program
as prepared by NHWAP and further agrees to pcrfbrm Wcatherization Program .services
in a manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efinciciicy
programs for low-Income households in order to provide the best services for New
Hampshire's low-income households.

2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2023 (I*Y23), will commence on upon
approval frorri New Hampshire Go\emof and Executive Council, and will have a
completion date of June 30, 2024. There is the potential to extend the contract if all the
funds arc not expended by June 30, 2024, subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

3. Contractor must provide the Department with a budget for the use of NHWAP SERC
funds before any reimbursement for wcatherization work will be paid by the Department.

4. In PY23, Contractor agrees to complete weaiherlzation services on 32 dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the SERC Application submitted to and approved
by US DOE. The installations will only be on eligible previously wcathcrizcd units or
units currently undergoing or expected to undergo weathcrizaiion measures outlined In
the most recent NH Wcaiherizarion Policies and Procedures ManuaJ and Field Guide.

5. In accordance with the US DOE's -'Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of
Wcatherization Program Notice (WTN) 15-4
htfps:/Aw'w.encrQV.GOv/ccre/wnD/download.s/wnn-l5-*-Qualiiv-work-Dlan-rcQuirement.
aCjlalS) and as modified in WP.V 22-4 (Wcntherization Propram Notice 22~t: OunlitY
Work Plan Rcouircment Update I Deportment of Encrgvl. beginning April 1, 2015,

Award Mo. DE-EE0009916 A, B, C /
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Contractor must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
Control Inspectors), available as either staff or contractors, able to fully function in that
capacity. This contract provides funding for continued training and technical assistance
sufticicnt to allow the Contractor to secure and maintain the skilled personnel necessary
to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 22-4.

6. All work performed under the Wcothcrization Assistance Program (WAP) in New
Hampshire, using federal money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum
specifications defined in the US Department of Energy's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP)
and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details are presented in the
Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weathcrization Program Notice 22-
4, as well as in the New Hampshire Weathcrization Assistance Program's Field Guide,
2021 Edition, which govcms how WAP energy conser>'ation measures (ECMs) arc to be
implemented. The Contractor must ensure, and be able to document for the Department,
that all staff and contractors who perform Weaiherization work in PY23 arc properly
(rained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the

requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not occur.

Award No. DE-EE00099lti ^
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FxrnBiTC

PAYMENT TERiVlS

In consideraiion of the satisfactory performance ofthe Scmccs. the Department agrees to pav
Communiry Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. in total, the sum of:

S48i,327.00 (U'hich hereinafter is referred (o as the "Conu-aeicd Amount"), of*which
$39,027.00 may be expended for Adminisirmion.
$29,800.00 may be expended for Health & Safety meastircs,
$412,500.00 (the balance). tr> be spent on wcathcri/aiion activities (Program Activity)

Drawdowns trom the toiaJ contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the Department. Disbursement of the contracted
amount shall be made in accordance with the procedures established by the Stale and 2 CFR
200.305(b) on an advance basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in
accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the
purpose ofthe program. The Contractor must make timely payments to (sub)contraciors in
accordance vvith the contract provisions. Contrdctor shall submit a payment request to the
Dcparimcni for each month of the contract period. Paymenl requests from Contractor shall be
received at the Department no later than the 15'" day of each month, or the first business dav
following the 15*^ day. '

Administrative cost.s arc provided to cover a specified nutnbcr of unit completions at minimal
standart^. Admimslraiivc funds may be pro-rated by ihc Dcpanment If production unit
completions do not meet expected production goals.

1 he Department may, as a function of its admini.straiivc oversight, modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary tn ensure the efncicm operation ofthe NHWAP as long as these modified
cxpenditurc.s do not exceed the Contracted Amount total as specified above.

All obligations of the Department, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent
upon the availabtlity and continued appropriation of Federal funds for the services to be
provided. •

AwardNo.DE-EE00049l6 a or-
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NEW IIAMTSIIIHE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Conlracior identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5 ISOof the Drug-Free Workplace ActofiyUS (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 ctscq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections l.l 1 and 1.17 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

.  CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRVC-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANB HUNUN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENF;KGY

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ei seq.). The January 31, 1989. regulations were
amended and published as Part (I of the May 25. 1990, FcdemI Register (pages 21681-21691). and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-graniees and sub-contractors) that is a State m.ty elect to make one certification to the Department In each

•  federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or dcbarmcnt. Contractors using thi.s fonn
should send it to:

Kirk Stone, Wcathcrization Assistance Manager. New Hampshire Department of Energy
21 S. Fruit Sucet, Suite 10, Concord. NH 03301

(.A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against cmptoyces for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees aboui-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will-

(I) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

Award No. DE-EE00099I6 ytS^UDthniK
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CERTIFICATION RECaRDING DRUG-FREE WORiO^LACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CR.\NTEFS OTHER THAN fTiDrVTDUALS, coniM

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US department ok EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRJCULTIRF. - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days aflcr such conviction;

fe) Notifyijtg the agency in writitig. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2) ftrjm an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employee's inu.si provide notice, including position title, to every grant
orflccr on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices: Notice .shall include the
identification nu(nbcr(s) of each aficcicd grant;

(0 Taking one of Utc following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted-

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action agaimsi such an employee, up to and including
icnninaiion. consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring StJch employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for .such purposes by a Federal, State, or local healih,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c). (d), (c). and (0-

(8) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the pcrformattce of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
2 Industrial Park Drive #2, Concord. NH 03301

Community Action Program Bciknao-Merrlmack Counties. Inc. Upon GAC approval thriMiph June 30. 202J
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Michael Tabory. Chief Operating Officer
Name and Title of Authorised OtptflSctp Representative

01/02/2024

Contractor Reprcscpfativc Signature Date

Award No. Dt:-KE00099I6 0 ihry )1
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NEW hampshirje department of E.NERG V

standard EXHIBIT E

r  ' t'S'-ccs to comply with the provisions of SectionJI9 of Public Uw 101-Ul. Government wide Guidance for New Restriciions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352
ond funhcr agrees to have the Contractor's icprcscntaiivc, as idcnlitlcd in Scctions'l.l 1 and 1.12 of rlie General '
Provisions c.\ecutc tJic following Certificaiion;

CERTIFICATION KEGaKDINO LOBBYING
US DEFAKTMENT OF HEALTH AND IH/MAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US department of EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGYPrograms (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-lrKcmc Home Energy Assistance Program
IIRRP Program
WealheHzatioo A5.iisfance Program

Comract Period: Upon fi&C approval to iunc 30, 2024

The undersigned cerliftes. to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on belialfofthe undersigned to any
person for mllucncing or attempting to innucnce an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an ©mccr or ern^pioyee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal coniracl. continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
-federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantcc or sub
contractor). O

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated fund.s hove been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of anv agency, a Member of Congress an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee nf a Member of Congress in connection with this '
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantcc or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard l-oirn LLL, '•Di.^clo.sure Fomi to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with it.s instmciions, anachcd and identified as Standard Exhibit £-1.

(3) The undesigned .shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipicnis shall ccrtlN- and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made into. Submission of this cenification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this rransaction
im^sed by Section 1352. Title 31; lM»:pidc. Any person who fails to file die required certificaiion shall be
sul^ to a avil pwaltyof not lejHfan SlCf.OOO and noi more ihan $100,000 for each such failure.

Chief Operating OfllccrContrttctorlleprescn^rSlelSfiire ' Contractor's Representative Title
CQminunitv Action Program R«;iLnwp.M<>7ini^[^ Inc. 01/02/2024
Contractor Name Date

Award No. OE.EE00099I6 Xl-. ...
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NEWHAMPSHTRK DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contraclof idcniified ia Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to complv with the provisions of
Executive Ofiice of the President. Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarnicnt, Suspension.
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contrjctor's representative, as identified in
Sections I.! 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (h< following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBaRMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITV MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

/nsfnicliony/ur Ctrtification

(1) By signing and submlning this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
ccniftcation set out below.

(2) The irwbility of a person to provide the ccrrificalion required below viiJI not necessarily result in denial of
panlcip^ion in this covered transaction. If necess^-. the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered In
connection with the- NH Department ofEncr^' (Department) determination whether to enter Into iliis
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primar\' participant to furnish a certification or an •
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is x material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the '
Depaiiincni dcteimilrtcd to enter into ihi.s iransaction. If it h later determined thai the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available lo the
Federal Government, the Depanment may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide imotcdiatc written notice to the Department agency lo
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted it at ony time the prospective primary participant leams that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) 1 he lerm.s covered transaction," ''debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered transaction."
"participant." "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal " and "voluntarily excluded."
as used In this clause, have the meanings set put in tlw Ocfinliiorw and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered (ransaciion be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspc^cd, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the Department.

(7) "Die prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal chat It will include the clause
titled Certification Regarding Debarmcni, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary F.xclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions." provided by the Department, without modification, in alMower tier covered
transactions and in all soliciiallon.s for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaciion, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the
method and frequency by which it dctemiinei the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is •

•  not required to, check the Non-procurement List (of e.xcluded parties).
(9) Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in

order to render in good faith the certification reqiiired by this clamc. The knowledge and Informotion of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally po.ssesscd by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instnjcticns. if o participant in a covered
transaction knowingly^ enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaciion. in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or
default.

Award No. DE-EE00099I6 x-fttibit D ihru U,
CFDA No. 81.042 InaiMltS^Dolc {L/^i
Community Action Program BcDcnap Merrimidc Coumici. Inc. Pige 4of7



CERTIFICATION RF.OAROINC DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, coni'd

Certification Regarding Dvbarmeni. Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters ■ Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primar>' participant ccdincs to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;

(a) ore not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmcni, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered uansaciions by any Federal depariniciit or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or hud s
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal olTcnsc In conrtccitoti
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pcrformiitg a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antiinist statutes or
commission of embeaalemcnt, ihcfi, forgery, bribery, faliincatlon or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; ^

(c) ■ are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govcnunental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (1) (b)

,• ofthiscenificBtiontand

(d) have tjot.-within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the pro.spectivc primary panicipant is unable to ccnifv* to any of (he statements in this certification.
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certijkation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, fneUglbilily and
yuluiitary Exclusion • Lontr Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to l.owcr Tier Participant*)

Dy signing and submining (his lower tier proposal (contract), ihc prospective lower tier participant as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies tn the bcM of its knowledge and belief that it and it.s principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voUintarily
e.xcludcd front participation in lliis transaction by any federal depanment or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall htiach an e.xplanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospeclive lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (conrract) that it will include tliis
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Incligibiliiy. and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," wltjjaarnfedificniion In oil lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lo^T tier covered (rjtnsaciic

Chief Operating Officer

Contractor Rcpresentatiye Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Communitv Action Pruuram Relknan-Merrimack Counties. Inc. 01/02/2024
Contractor Name Date
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NEW H.<MPSHIRF. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGV

STANDARD EXiftDIT C

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
A MERICANS WITH DKSABI I.ITIES ACT COMPL lANCE

1 he Contracior idcntincd in Section 1.3 of the General Provision.s agrees bysignaiurc of ihe Contractor's
representative as ideniined in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlsiotis, loe.xccule the following
certincation;

Dy signing and submiiling this proposal (contraci) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable cfFcns to
comply wiih all applicable provisions of the Americans with Di.wbilitic.s Act of 1990.

tor

Chief Operating Officer
Represeniaii^ Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Acn'un Prupam Bclknao-Meirintack Coimtie.s. Inc. 01/02/2024
Contractor Name Date
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NEW lU.vn»SHlRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTiriCATION

Public Law 1W.227, Part C
ENVmONiMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227. Pan C environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known tn the Pro Children Act of I 994, requires
that sinokiny not be pennittcd in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or cnntracicd for by
an entity and used ix>ulii)ely or reyularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, it (he services arc funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
goveniments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guaranlec.

The law does not apply to children's seiviccs provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Mcdicaid funds, and ponions of facilities used for inpaticnt drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the impo.sition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
Si 000 per day and/'or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entit>',

Fly signing and suhminiog this application |hc applicani'granicc ccrtirics that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The applicant/grantw funhcr agrees that it will require the language of this'cenification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's service.s and that all Subgraniecs shall cenlfy accordingly.

Chief Oocralintf Officer
Conlrnetor Kcprcsenlaii^' Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Commtiniiv Action Program Bciknap-Mcfrimack Counties. Inc. 01/02/2024
Contractor Name
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statemefll

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathcrina and maintaining (he data
nc^cd, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send commonis regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestion.^ for reducing this btirdco, to
Office of Infortnaljcn Resources Management Policy. Plans, and Oversight. Records Management Division. HR-
422 . GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400). IJ..S. Dcparlmcni of Energy (Department of Energy)
1000 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington. DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget
(OMR), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400). Washington, DC 20503.

Communiry Action Program Bclknart-Mcmmack Couniies. Inc.. (Hereinafter called the "Contractor")
HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-3 52) Section 16 of tlte
Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275). Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization .Act of
1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318 Pub. L. 93-
568. end Pub. L. 94-482), Section-504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-H2>. the AgeDiscrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135). Title VHl of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L 90-284) the
Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91). the Energ>'Conservation and Production Act of
1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the
obove laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Contractor agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on Ihc ground of race, color, national origin, sex. age, or disability, be excluded from parttcipaiion
in. be denied the benefits of. or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which
the Contractor receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of ObllgaUon
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or siructurc provided, leased,
or Improved with Federal assistance extended to the Contractor by the Department of Energy, tiiis assurance
obligates the Contractor for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the ca^ of any transfer of
such service, financial aid. equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Contractor for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Contractor for the period during which the redcral assistance is'cxtcndcd to the
Contractor by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Contractor's
employment practices affect the delivery of scnricc.s in propams or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race; color, national
origin, .sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such crhploymcnt practices may include, but arc not
lirnitcd to. recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rales of pay.
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Aasuniocc

The Contractor shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgranls,
or subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property', or sinicture to comply
AwardNo. DE-EE0009916 /r-v >CFDA No. 81.042 Ini.iii^ Dare
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with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrccipicnl shall be required to sign a written a^urancc
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and siibrccipicnt to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Record-s

The Contractor agrees to compile and maintain infomiaiion pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Contractor's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such infoimation shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (I) the manner in which services arc or will be provided and related
data neces.tary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sc.x, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public conlact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to pcnnit cflcctive participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecet^sarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discriminaiion; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, se.x, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is anintcgral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written daia dcierThincd by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Contractor agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and actiViLies
developed by the Contractor from the use of Federal assistance funds c.xlendcd by the Department of Energy.
Facilitie.sof the Contractor (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) undoll records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Contractor"s coriipliancc with the civil rights laws
.shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director. OfiTice of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration ofand for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
dale hereof, to the Contractors by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which arc approved before such date. The Contractor recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be e.xtended in reliance upon the representations end agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United Statc.s shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Contractor, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
pcrson(s) whose signatures appear below and \vho arc authorized to sign this a.vinrancc on behalf of the
Contractor.

Contractor Certification

The Contractor certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 da.vs of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of I DC.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Contractor upon written
request to KH Depanment of Energy).

Michael Tabory, Chief Operating OfTlcer

N'ume and Title of Authorized Conlraci<x>4(q)rc.Hc^tative

r
Rcprcseniative Signature ' Date

if
Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
2 Industrial Park Drive, PO Box 1016, Concord. NH 03J02
603-225-3295

Award No. OE-EE00099I6Awarfl NO. uc-ccuuuyyio Exhih/t \j
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT.!

certification RF<;aRDI.NC the federal FUNDtNC ACCOL^TABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (KKATA) COMPLUNCE

The Federal Funding Accountabilit>- and Transparency Ac( (FFATA) lequiies prime awardecs of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S30,000 and awarded on or aPcr October I, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated ttrsi-tier sub-grants of S30.000 or more. If the iiiitiat
award is below S30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to ur over $30,000,
the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

tn accordance with 2 CFR Pan 170 (^Reporting Sufxr^vard and hlxecuiivn Coniptnsation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the tbiiowing informaiion for any subaward or contract
award subject lo the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Nome of entity
2) Amount of award >
3) Funding agcnc)-
4) NA ICS code for contracis/CFOA program number for grants
5) Program source
d) Award title dc.scriptivc of the purpose of the funding action !
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of perfonnance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UT.I
id) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

a. More than 80Vo of annual gross revenues arcfrom the Federal govemmeni, and those revenues
are greater than S2SM attnually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting (o the SEC.

Prime gram recipients must submit FFAT.A required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Th®
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 1 10-252,
and 2 CFR Pan 170 {Reporting Suber^vard and Executive Compeusution hi/ormaiion), and further agrees
to have the Gnintee's representative, as identified in Sections l.ll and 1.(2 of the General Provisions
execute the following Ccrtificaticii:

The below named Grantee agrees to provide needed inrormation as outlined above to the New Hampshire
Dcpanmeni of Energy and to cop9f»ly^witli all applicable provisions ofthe (-ederal l-'inancial Accountability
and Transparency A<

;  Chief Onerating Officer
Jntf^ior Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimnck Cmmiies. Inc. UI /02f2024
Contractor Name Dale

Award No. Dli-FFOOOWre Exhibh/3 / y
CFDAMI.042 _ (nitials'^^ Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIUIT .1

FORM A

As the Grantee identified In Section 1.3 of ilic Genera! Provisions, I ccnifS' that (he responses to (he below
listed questions are true and accurate.

I. Tlie UEI rtumbtf r for your cn(it>' is; KNDIA6MY.1JD3

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) M percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal coniracis, subconu-acls. loans,
grams, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) 530,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from \:S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrsnts. and/or cooperative agreements?

NO _J<_YF.S

If the answer to HI above Is NO, stop bci'e

If (he answer (o Ml above is YES, please answer (be following:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of (he executives in your busincs.s or
organization through periodic repons filed under section i 3(a) or 15(<1) of (he Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U'.S.C.78m(a}. ?8o(d)) or secdon 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

If (he answer to HI above is YES, scop here

If (he answer (o 03 above is NO, please aosw-cr ihe foMowtiig;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization arc as follows:

NVme: Amount;

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amouni:

Aniouoc

Amount:

Amount:

Award No. DI:-EE00099I6

CFDA«I.042

Community Action Progrjin Bclknap Meiriniact>; Counties. Inc.
Ini

Eahiyi ij
Date //»/>'

— Page 2 of 2



NFlVV llAMrSIUKi;; department of energy

Exiuan K

CERTlFrCATION REGARDING BUILD AMEKICa, BUY AMERICA (Buy Amcriia) COMPLFANCE

The Gramcc identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wiUi the provisions of the Build
Amenca. Buy America Act (Buy America) Pub. L. No. 1 17.58. §§ 70901-52 under the Infrastructure Investment
Md Jobs Act (lIJA), Pub. L. No. 117-58. as well as the hUid Imphmeuiaiion Ouidimce on Application of Buy
Amenca Preference in FeJeral Financial Auisiance Programs for Infrasirttciure ntcmorandun) from the Office
of Management and Budget (0MB) doted April 18. 2022. and further 0MB or US Dcparttnw! of Encrcv
(USDOE) guidance once issued.

Buy America seeks to strengthen Made in America Laws and boUler Amcrica'.s industrial base, protect national
security, and support high-paying jobs. Buy America requires that the New Hampshire Department of Fncrirv-
(DepartJiient) and the Grantees of federal funding sh»ll ensure that "none of the funds made available for a
Federal financial assistance program for infrastructure, including each deficient program, may be cbligaled for a
project unless all of the iron, steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the oroicct arc
produced in the United States."

Ocnniliimx:

Infrastructure Includes, at a minimum, the struciurcs, facilities, and equipment for, in the United States;

•  Roads, highways, and bridges;
•  Public iransportailon;
•  Dams, ports, harbors, and other maritime facilities;
•  Intercity passenger and freight railroads;
•  Freight and intcrmodal facilities;
«  .Airport.<;
• Water sj'stems. including drinking water and wa.stcwatcr systems;
•  Electrical transmission facilities and sy-siems;

■ • Utilities;

•  Broadband infrastructure;
•  Buildings and real property; and
•  Facilities that generate, transport, and disti ibiitc energy.

Further. Uic •Infrastructure" in question must cither he publicly owned or scr^'e a public function; privately owned
infrasinicture that i$ not open to the public, such as a per.sonal residence, is not considered "infrastructure" for
purposes oflhis requirement. In cases where the "public" nature of the infrastruciurc is unclear the Grantee
should contact the Department. The Depanniem will consult will, the USDOE which will render a detcrTninalion. "

Project means the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of Infrastructure in the United Stales.

Consirucllon Materials includes an article, material, or supply -other than an item ofprimarily iron or steel- a
manufactured product; cement and cemcntilious materials; aggregates sitch os stone, sand, or gravel; or aRRrcRatc
bmding agents or additives - that is, or consists primarily of:

•  Kon-fcrryus metals;

•  Plastic and polymer-based products (including pol>*\*inytcliloridc, composite building materials, and
polymers used in fiber optic cables);

•  Glass (including optic glass);
«  Lumber: or

•  Drywall.

Award No. DC-EP.00099I6 - c h-kj/v/
CFD A No. 81.042 ^ -t.t- UA No. 81.042 iTJ/
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DomesHc content procuremcal preference means and refers to the snme ihinj; as "Buy America Preference."
These terms mean all iron and steel used in (he project arc produced in the United States; the manufactured
prodocts.uscd in the project arc produced in the United States; or the construction materials used in.lhe project arc
produced in the United States.

HttYAmcricu Preference:

N one of the funds provided under this grant to the Grantee may be used for a project for infrastructure unless:

I. .All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United Staics-this means ail
monufacturing processes, from die Initial melting stage through the application of coatings,
occurred in the United States;

"2. All manufactured products used in the project are produced In the United Siates-this means the
manufactured product was manufactured In the United Slate.t; and die cost of the components of
the manufactured product that arc mined, produced, or menul^rured in the United States is
greater thait 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the mamifflcturcd product, unless
another standard for determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufaclured
product has been established uttder applicable law or regulation; and

3. All construction malertals arc manufactured in the United States-ihi.s means that all
manufacturing processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.

The Buy America Preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that arc consumed in, incorporated
into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it docs not apply lo tools, equipment, and supplies, such as
temporary scaffolding, brought into the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the
infrastructure project. Kor docs a Buy America Prefcrcitce apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable
chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that arc used at or within the fmi.shcd infrastructure project but
art not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the Infrastructure project.

The Grantee and its subcontractor, subgrantce, or other person, firm, or corporation, will provide the best
available documentation Illustrating compliance wiih the Buy America Preference. The Department reserves the
right to request additional infoonation from the Grantee to further demonstrate compliance with the Buy America
preference. Compliance may be met by providing the following:

1. A written statement from the manufacturer demonstrating that the iron, steel, manufactured
products, or consi/uction materials purchased from that manufacturer were produced in tite
United Slates.

2. Photographic evidence that the iron, steel, manufactured products, or construclion materials were
produced in the United States.

3. Other documentation prc-approved by the Department.

Waivers:

When necessary, the Grantee may seek a waiver from the Buy America Preference requirements. Any issued
w'aiver is made by the USDOE. The Grantee must contact the Dcpartiuent with its intent to seek a waiver from
the Buy America Preference requirements. The Department will submit the waiver request on behalfof the
Grantee to USDOE. Requests lo waive the application of the Buy America Preference must be In writing.
Waiver requests arc subjccl to public commctu periods of no less than 15 days, as well as review by the Office Of
Management and Budget (0MB). Current limcfrarnc estimate from request to approval is 45-60 days.

Waivers must be based on one of the following justifications:

I. Applying the Buy America Preference would be ineon.slstcnt with the public interest (Public
Interest);

Award No. DE-EE0009916 E.xliitVt y »
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2. The types of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials arc not produced in the
United States in sufftcicnl and reasonably available quantities orol'o satisfactory quality
(Ncnavailabilily); or

3. The inclusioh^f iron, steel, manufncturcd products, or construction materials produced in the
United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent (Unreasonable
Cost).

Requests to u-aive the Buy America Preference must include the following:

•  Waiver type (Public (ntacst. Nonavailability, or Unreasonable Cost);
•  Recipient name and Unique Entity Idcntiner(Utl);
•  A detailed jusrificalion as to how the non-domestic item(s) is^'are essential (he project;
•  A certification (hat (he Grantee made a good faith cfTon to solicit bids for domcstiu products supported by

terms included in requests for proposals, contracts, and non-praprietary communications with potential
suppliers;

•  Total estimated project cost, with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
•  Total estimated infrastructure cost.s, with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
•  A brief description of the project, its location, and the specific infrastructure involved;
•  List iand descriptiott of iron or steel item(s), manufactured goods, and/or consiruclion malerial(s) the

recipient seeks to waive from the Buy America Preference, including name, cost, country^ies) of origin,
and relevant PSC and NAICS codes for each;

•  A justification statement—based on one of the applicable jusiiricaiions outlined above—as to why the
items in question cannot be procured domestically, including the due diligence performed (e.g., market
research, industry outreach) by the recipient to anempt to avoid the need for a waiver. This justification
may cite, if applicable, the ab.sence of any Buy America-compliant bids received for domestic products in
response to a solicitation; and

•  Anticipated impact to the project if no waiver is issued.

The USDOE and the Department may request, and the Grantee must provide, additional information for
consideration of this wavier. The USDOE's final determination regarding approval or rejection of the waiver
request may not be appealed.

Chief Qpefotine Officer
Ccmtractor Representative SiZiinirc Contractor's Representative Title

Communltv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc 01/02.^024
Contractor Name Date
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NF.W HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENEROY

KXIIiniTt

certification R£GAJU)rNC NHPA and NEPA COMPLIANCE FOR WAP23

The Orflnice Idcnlificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with tlie provisions of
the National Environmcnul Policy Act (KF.Pa)42 U.S.C. §4321 ct scq.. rules promulgated thereunder
(40CFR Paris 1500-1 SOS), guidance documents issued by the OfHce of Management and Budget or the
US Oepartmcnt of Energy (LiSOOE). New llantpshire Dcpaiiineni of Energy (Deparuitent) executed
Historic Preservation Programmatic Agrccmcm, and USDOE OlTicc of Energy EfHciency and Renewable
Efiergj' (EERE) KEPA Deicrminalion CFO..SEP-ALRT)-2023A (NCPA Dcieimirution). The NEPA
Deicrmlnalion onl>- applies to aciiviiics funded by the GFO-SEP-ALRD-2023A. Administrative and
Legal Requirements Document.

The Grantee agrees to a.ssure compliance with Section KXi of the National Historic Preservation Aci
(NHPA) and the Department executed Historic Preservation Prograiinnaiic Agreement prior to
authorizing the use of funds.

The Grantee agrees that it will only fund aciiviiie.s that arc listed within the "Bounded Categories"
pursuant to the NEPA Determination, which include:

1. Administrative activities associated with management of the designated Wcathcrizotion Office
and management of programs and strategies in support of wcnthcriyation activities.

2. Devclopjiicnrand implementation ol'training program.-; and strategies for wcathcrization effort,
including initial home cncrg)- audits, final inspeciion.s, and client education.

3. Purchase of vehicles and equipment needed for administrative activities, wcatherization energy
atjdits, installation of measures indicated below, and quality control inspections.

4. NVeathefizationuclivitiesprovidcdihatactivitiesadherctothercquircmcmsoftherespcctive
Recipients' the Department c.xecutcd Historic Prescrvairon Progromniatic Agreement, arc installed in
existing buildings, are appropriately sized, arc covered b\ Appcndi.x A of 10 CFR 440. and/or approved
as part ol the energy audit approval procedures and material approvals process, and limited to:

a. Building Shell Meosurc.s:
i. Install insulation where needed
ii. Perform air sealing
iii. Repair nnd rcpUicc windous, storm \vindo\vs. install window film, awnings and

solar screens

b. .Mechanical Measures:

i. Clean, tune, repair, or replace healing and/or cooling systems
ii. Itistall duct and healing pipe insulation
iii. Repair leaks in healing'eoolittg ducts
iv. Install programmable Ihetinv^stais
V. Repair/replace domestic water heaters
vl. Install domeslie hot water heater tank insulation

c. Electric and Water .Measures:

t. Install efTieicnl light sources
ii. In.stall low-flnw showcrheads

iii- Replace inelTlcient refrigerators with encrgy-effkient models

Award No. DE.EE000WI6 E^hibif u
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5. linergy-relatcd health and safety measures (per Weathcrlzalion Program Notice 22-7, or the most
current guidance) provided (hat activities udherv to the requirements of the Deportmeni executed Historic
Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and arc limited to:

a. Combustion appliance safety inspections
*  b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of fomiaidchydc. volatile organic

compounds, flanmiable liquids, and other air pollutants
c. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections
d. Testing and/or containincni, removal or disposal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture,

refrigerant, mercury, and other materials so WAP ociivities may be completed
c. Radon testing and the installation of precautionaiy- measures to minimize radon

infiltration, including but not limited to, sump pump covers, covering exposed dirt doors
with polyclhylcno sheeting which contains a rating of r>o more than 0.1 pcnn. which is
sealed and attached at all seams, waits and foundation penetrations >

f. Inspection of combustion appliances and installation of carbon monoxide and sntoke
alarms

g. Install ventilation as required by the American Society of Heating and Air-Condilioning
, Engineers (ASIfRAE) 62.2-2016 standard, including blower door testing addressing
infiltration, ventilation, and exhaust

6. Weathcrizalion Readiness Fund (WRf) supported activities focused on structural, healllx and
safc^ issues in the dHxlling which must be addressed before.weatherizaticn measures can be safely and
effectively installed, provided that those activities adhere to the requirements of the Department executed
Historic Preserv^ion Programmatic Agreement, arc installed In existing buildings, and arc limited to:

a. . Repair/replace damaged window's and doors
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs
c. Roof repairs
d. (iitcrior and exterior wall repairs
e. Ceiling repairs
f. Floor repairs
g. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to guner repair or replacement, trimming shrubs, and/or

grading in close proximity to the perimeter of the foundation.

7. Incidental and necc.s.sary energy-related repairs and replacements limited to:
a. Repair/rcplacc damaged window.s and doors
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs

8. Development, implcntcntalion, and installation of onsite renewable energy technology from
renewable resources, provided (hot activities adhere (o the requirements of the Department executed
Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, arc installed in or on an existing structure, and do not
require ground disturbance or tree removal, and limited to:

a. PV systems appropriately sized that do not c.xcecd 60 kW
b. . Solar hot water heating systems appropriately sized that do nor exceed 200,000 BTL'/HR
c. Battery storage, if applicable, attached to a structure (e.g. inside a garage) and not visible

from the public right of way

Activitle&'projects not listed above, including ground disturbing activities end tree removal; activities •
where the following elemenis exist: cxtraordinaiy circumstances, cumulative impacts or connected
actions that may lead to significant effects on the human environment, or any inconsistency with (he
"integral elements" (as contained in 10 CFR Part 1021, Appendix D) as Ihcy relate to a particular project; '
and activities restricted elsewhere in Award No. DE-EE00099I6 are not "Allowable Activities."

Award No. De-E£00099l6
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Activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Aciiviries" a» defined above arc subject to additional NEPA
review, which requires additional documentation and submission of an environmental questionnaire, If-
the Contractor wants to fund activities that do not qualiiy as "Allowable Activities," then Contractor
agrees to notify the Department SVAP Adininibtralor. and lo seek NEPA review through tlje Department
WAP Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review are not authorized for Federal t\uiding and the
Contractor may not utidcrtakc or fund those activities unless and until the fS DOE Contracting Officer,
through the Department WA? Administmior, provides written autliorizatioij for those activities.

All activities related to hazardous material identified during a WAP job will be managed in accordance
with applicable federal, state, and local requirements.

The Contraolor agrees to document confoniiance with the Allowable Activities listed above before
commencement of any project.

The Contractor agrees to cotnplete the online US DOE training on NTPA and I listoric Preservation at
!/'. Proof of cotnplete training must be submitted to the l>partmc(it WAP

Administrator.

Chief Opcratinu Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

Cotnoumicv Action Program nclknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. Q1/Q2/2Q24
Contractor Name . Date

Rcprescniaacit: urc
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scunlan. S«rctar> (iTState oflhc SiJic oI Now Hnmrshirv. do htrcb} ccnity iJiai COMNKfNITY ACTI<)N
PROGRAM Utl.JCNAP AND MI-.RRIMACK COtiNTlLS. INC. ii a Nc« Hampshire Norprolii Corpomiirxi rcKlstcrcd
to iranaael hoslncss in New Hampshire on May 28. I9h3. 1 funher ceriilv (hui all fees bikJ documents required by the Secretary- of
Suite ofTice have heen received nnd is in g.xul jtandint- ns far as this iilTiee i.* concerned.

Business ID: <J02I

Cenineale Number: 00061940(7

£

5P

o

A

IN rtSTIMONV WHEktOK

I hacio .set my hand ajid cause to be alll-Ved

the Seal of the State of New Hampihirc.

thl.v Jrd da\ of .April A.D. 2023.

n.ii id M. .Vcanlarv

Sccrciarv of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERJUMACKCOUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWER<NG COMMUNlTI£S S INCE 196S

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Christooher J. Pvles. Chaifoerson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected oflicer of Community Action PfCQfam Belknap and Merrimack Counties inc.

2. The following Is a (rue copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors. duly called
and held on March 9. 2023. at which a quorum of the Oirectors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne AgrI, ChM Executive Officer/Execufive Director, M/chaei Tobory,
Chief 0p9rating OfflearfDcputy Dlractor, JUI Lesmtrlsas, Chief Fiscal Officer, Sfeven
Oragoln, Budgat Analyst, Christophar J. Pylas. Chairparson, Board of Direcfora are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Program Beiknap and Merrimacfc Counties. Inc. to

enter. Into contracts or agreements with the Slate of New Hampshire ar>d any of Its
agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modfrcations thereto,

which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. i hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendnnent to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remairxs valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that It is urtderstood that the State of New Harnpshire will rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the po$ition(s) irvficated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated; 01/02/2024 Signature of Elected Officer
I.

Neme.:. Christophef J. Pyjes ' )
Title: Chairperson. Dbard of Olreo(ors

Mftiling Addttt* P.O. Boi 1016. Coocotd. NH OiXl2 Adminiiuitive Office 2 Indimcai Pa;k Dove, Concotd. NH
Phone 603 225-3295 | \ 800 850-5525 m HOP 73^.2^;c,4 F«: 60.1 228-I8»/8

Wcbeite: eapbm.org



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0*tl(HMXVtTTT)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OT INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CCRTTflCATE HOLDER THIS
CBRTMfCATE DOES HOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NECATIVBLY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING WSURERfS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVEORPRODUCER.AMOTHeCERnFICATeHOLOER. '
impOniaNI. iI in* camiieaia noioar ta an additional INSURED, tha pc<ky(lta)ffluttli*ve ADDITIONAL INSURED previalona or ba #odora*d.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, fub|*ct (0 Uit tarma and cendKlon* ol (Ih policy, cartain pMiciaa may repuira an andofMmonL A atatamanl on
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Bclknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position.as of February 28. 2023 and 2022". and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly. In all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28. 2023
and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

6es/s for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standerds, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates. Our responsibilities under those
standards ere further described in the Auditors' ResponslbHilies for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of.
Belknap-Merrimack Courtlies. Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe lhat the audit evidence we have obtained
■s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Reaponslbiltiies of Management for (ha financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the cor^olidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for (he dwign. implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation arwi
fair preseniation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the. financial statements, management is required to evaluate whelher there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, lhat raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' ResponsibMlios for tho Audit of the Flnanciaf Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial staternenls
as a whole are free from material misstaiement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Goveromerjf Auditing Standards will always delect a material
rnissialemen! when it exists. The risk of not detecting a materia! misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if (here is
a substantial likelihood thai, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements

In performing an audit in accordance wtth gerieraity accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditiitg Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design arid perform audit procedures responsive to those
nsks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
proc^ures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opiriion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc. 8 internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in (he aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc. 5 ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supptementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements •
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Feder^ Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative ReQuirements. Cost Principles, and.
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial siatemenis and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards

2



generally accepted in the United States of America In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects. In relation to consolidated financial
statements as a whole

Other Reporting Required by Govtrnmtnt Auditing Stsndards

in accordance with Govommeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
M. 2023. on our consideration of Community Action Program of Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its comptiance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters The purpose of (hat report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testirtg. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiver>ess of Community Action Program
of BelKnap-Merrimacic Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, tnc's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Dover. New Hampshire
Septemt>er U. 2023



CQMMUWtTY ACT>QM PQOflBAM BP. KWAP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FlNANCtAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28 ?B?3AND?Q»

ASSCTS

CURRENT ASSETS

Casti

Accounu rtcaivabie

inventory

Prepaid expenses
Investments

2023

S  1.711.575
6027,912

61.569

100.225
128.956

CURREPO UABiUriES

Cunent ponien of notes peyabie
Current portion of ri^ht of use Habtiity
Line of credit

Accounts pjyable
Accnred expenses

Refundable advances

Total Current tiabiirties

LONQ TERM UAfilLlTlES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Right of use liability.'lau currant portion shown above
Tenant security deoosits

Total iiabisiies

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

237.926

461,162

4.5S0.252
1.177.337

1.817.340

8.244.017

668.146

026.165

8.221

9.646.540

5.530.452
564.961

0 005.413

2023

S  1.364.485

5.244.621
271.926

33.029
136.793

Total Current assets 8.050.237 7,073.763

PROPERTY

Lar^. bu)idii>gs ana improventenio
Equipmenl, furniture and vehicles
Construa'ion'm process

7 627.214

4 762.497
'  132.920

7.368.799

6.335.485
41.401

Total property 12.522.631 13.745.685

Less accumulated deprociaiion 6.165.156 7.528.363

Property, net ■  6.357.475 6.217.322

OTHER ASSETS

Right of use asset
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Tenant security deposes
Due from related party

1.387.327

77.328

8.247

61.346

80.468

0.120

65.486

Total other assets I.S34.2S0 164.076

TOTAL ASSETS % 15.941.962 $ 13.455.151

LIABILITIES AND N^T ASSETS .

314.265

154.350

3.635,655
1.086.207

1.537.802

6.728.270

900.469

9.120

7.637.988

5,179.734
937.929

5.817.263

S 15.941.962 S 13.455.151

See Notte to Consolidaltd Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BFl . f^ERRiMACK COUHTI^g, .

CONSOLIDATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2fl. 30M

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awords

Rental income
Other lunds

In-kind

United Way
Interest income

Realized loss on sale of equipment

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions

$ 56.930.603 $

140.962

2.604.065

401.746

3.659

695

(36.538)

3.122.293

Total

i 56.930.603
140.962

S.926.3S6
401.748

3.659

695

Total revenues and other support 60.245.394 ,3.122.293 63.367.687

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 3.194.861 ^  (3.194.861)

Total 63.440.255 (72.5681 63.367.687

EXPENSES
Program
Management

61.101.300

1.988.237
61.101.300

1,988.237

Total expenses ,63.089.537 63.089.537

CHANOE IN NET ASSETS 350,718 . (72.568) 278.150

NET ASSETS, eEOINNING OF YEAR 5.179.734 637.529 5.817.263

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  5.S30.4S2 S  564,961 S  6,095.413

See Notes to Consolidated Finsnciil Ststements

5



CQMMUNtTY ACTIOH PROGRAM RFt kwap

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2021

Without Donor

Refitrlctlons

With Donor

Restrictions Totaj

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards

Rer^tai IrKome

Other fgnds

Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness
In-kind

United Way
Interest Income

Realized gain on sale olequipmeni

S  36.482.087
135.298

2.526.432
1.615.427 .

692.136

2.123

74

7.200

$

2.650.964

9  36.482.087
135.298

5177.416
1.615,427

592.136

2.123

74

7.200

Total revenues and other support 41.360.777 2.650.984 44.011.761

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 3.062.287 (3,082,287)

•

Total '44.423.064 (411.303) 44.011.761

EXPENSES

Program
Man^gemer^l

40:084.851
1.917.438

40.084.651
1.917.438

Total expertses 42.002.289 42.002.289

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2.420.775 (411.303) 2.009.472

NET ASSETS, BEOINNINO OF VEAR 2.758 959 1.048.832 3.807.791

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  5.179.734 5  637.529 5  5.817.263

See Notet to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACKON PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMC

CONSOLtDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2023

Prooram Manaaerrwnt Totel

Salaries and wa^es S  8.902.376 5  841.141 $ 9.743.517
Payroll taxes and benefits 2.422.222 155.843 2.578.065
Travel 233.521 16.301 249.822
Occupancy 1.360.924 133.139 1.494.063
Program services 44.607.205 . 44.607.205
Other cosia:

Accounting fees 66.194 1.959 68.153
Legal fees 24.793 268 25.061
Supplies 289.188 38.955 328,143
Postage and shipping 45.766 - 45.766
Eguipnient rental and maintenance 1.540 . 1.540
Printing and publications 41.775 15.970 57.745
Conferances. conventions and meetir>gs .  13.885 . 13.685
Interest 3.991 39.049 43.040
Insurance 131.454 30.788 ■ 162.242
Membership fees 13.298 1O.2'03 23.581
Utility and maintenance 139,247 . 139.247
Computer services 71.214 . 71.214
Other 2.298.910 139 405 2.438.315

Depreciation 32.049 565.136 597.185
in-kind 401.748 • 401.748

Total functional expenses S  61.101.300 S  1,988.237 S 63.069.537

Sm Notes to Consolidsted Financial StatomenU
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COWMUMin ACTiPN PRflafiAaiB£lJtf<AP -_MEfiRlMACK COUNTIES,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28.

Pfogram Manaoemant Total

Salaries and wages
Peyrol) (axes arid benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs;

Accouniing fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publicalions
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

5  7,96l.t77 S 1.180.579 S 9.141.756
2,206.690 228.375 2.525.065
194.343 9.648 203.991

1.267.982 1 U.418 1.382.400
25.639.6S9 • 25.639.659

. 74.855 74.855
15.361 152 15,513

159.644 44.534 204.378
49.860 8.73! 58.591
1.141 . 1.141

28.133 27.696 55.829
13.964 • 13.064
29.187 26,341 56.028

124.730 43.856 168.566
16.276 - 16.276
88.702 104.142 192.844
111,990 . 111.090
927;525 53.611 061.136
566.151 . 566,151
592.136 592.136

S 40.064.851 $ 1.917.438 $ 42,002,289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CQMMUNtTV ACTION RFt KNAP - merrimack cnuMTff ̂

CONSOLIDATeO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEO FEBRUARY 28. 2Q12 AND 207i

3023 ?022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change tn net o%u\9
Ad|ujifnenis lo reconcile change m net assets to

net cash from operating aciivities.
Depreciaiion

Paycheck Protection program loan forgiveness
Initretl on deferred financing costs
Realized toss on disposal of equipment
Decrease (increase) In current assets

Accounts receivable
Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Due from related party
Tenant secunty deposits

inaease (decrease) (n current liabilities.
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Tenani security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property
investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH;
Cash

Cash escrow and resetve funds

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year lor mtereit

278.150 $ 2.009.472

597 185

483

36 539

(783:291)
190,357
(66.297)

4.140

873

914,597

91.130

279.536
(899)

t.542.504

(773,876)
9.837

(764.039)

(154.350)
(309.165)

(463.515)

566 151

(1.615,427)

483

(7.200)

(1.481.612)
(216.031)

39.781

(65.486)
(2.239)

2.109.623
297.256

500.661
2,239

2.137.869

7.200

(1.141.101)
(10.797)

(1.144.698)

(225,676)
(258,743)

(484.421)

314.950 508.750

1.473.953 965.203

s 1.788.903 i 1.473.953

5 1.711,575 s 1.364.465
77.328 69.468

S 1,788.903 s 1,473.953

s 43.040 5 56.026

See Notes to Consoliditsd Financial Statements
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PRgJtBMMLKfiAE^jyiESBIMACK counties iwr

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEQ FERRUARY 28. 2033 AND 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Organization
Community Action Program Beiknap - Merrimack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and supoort
ne^s of the low income and elderly clients in the two county sen/ice areas as well as
s a e WKJe. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Pr^ram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board: All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

"  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
•  CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles oeneraily
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial slatemer>ts of the Organization have been prepared In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report Information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following rtet asset classifications:

Nef assets without donor resfr/ctforrs include net assets thai are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

)

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporafy in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

10



g.QWM»NITY ACTION PRQfifiAM BELKNap - coumtifs iwip
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY'28. 2023 AND 2Q27

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions When,restrictions expire, net assets are redassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $564,961 and $637,529 at
February 28. 2023 and 2022. respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United Stales and the'Stale of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by (ax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred Income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740). 'Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabilities at ttie enacted lax- rale expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryfonwards available at February 28. 2023 and 2022.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership (the Partnership) is taxed as a partnership. Federal
income taxes are not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are
included in the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rale.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740). Accounting for tncome Taxes.
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLtDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation Assets purchased whh a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Oepredation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as.follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equlprnent, furniture and vehicles 3- 10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash ar>d Caah Eaulvalenta
For pu^oses of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased wilh original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to ar^y significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

ContfibutionB
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restrided by Ihe donor for future
peric^s or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restrict^ support, depending or^ the nature of the restriction, However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contfibuted ServlceB
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No
958. Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. If the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
othen^ise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.
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COMMUNITY..ACTION.PROGRAfi^ BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COqNTIES.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
•FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

In-Kind Donations / Noncaah Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur under normal operating activities. The Oroanlzation received
$401,748 and $592,136 in donated facilities, services and supplies iof the years ended
February 28. 2023 and February 28. 2022. respectively (See Note 17).

Advertisina

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Tptal advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2023 and February 28. 2022 totaled $133,749
and $134,193. respectively.

InventOfv

Inventory consists of weatherizalion supplies and'work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost Of net realizable value, using the'first-in. first-out method.

Revonue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution Is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Pfooram Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue

Sandy Ledge (the Partnership) derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due. and control
of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a
term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership
expects to be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain

' the lease will be expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of EKPenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services and supporting. activities benefited
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff

13



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 202?

Expense Method of allocation
Wages and benefits Time and effort

Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

New Accountino Pronouncemanta
In February 2016, the Financial Accounttng Standards Board (FASB) issu^ Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Looses (Topic 642), to increase transparency and
comparabiltly among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on
the statement of financial position and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard applies a right of use modei that
requires, all leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, to recognize an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term .and liability to make
lease payments to be recorded. The Organization elected not to restate the comparative
period. The Organization also elected not to reassess at adoption (1) expired or existing
contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the tease classification of
any existing leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU
2016-02 resulted in the recognition of operating right of use assets of $1,387 327 and
operating right of use lease liabilities of 51.387,327 as of March i. 2022. Results for
periods beginning prior.lo February 28. 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with
the Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption .ot ASU 2016-02 did not
have a material impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2020. the FASS issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-
07, Not-fof-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not for-Profit
Entities for Contributed Nonfmancial Assets, intended to improve transparency in the
reporling of contributed nonfmancial assets, also Known as gifts-in-kind. for not-for-profit
organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as
land, buildings, and equipment; the use of-fixed assets or utilities; materials and
supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible assets; and recognized contributed
services. The ASU requires a not for-profrt organization to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item In the statement of activities, apart from
contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for
each category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The Agency adopted the
provisions of ASU 2020-07 during 2022.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 26. 2023 and 2022. The Organizalton has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

14



COMMUNITY A£I1QRPR0GRAIVI BELK^^ftP -

NOTES TO CONSOUOATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBROARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue In the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,017,340 and $1,537,802 as of February 28. 2023 and 2022. respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization s financial assets as of February 28:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Accounts receivable

Investments

Cash reserves

Cash esaow

2023 2022

$  1.711.575 $  1.384.485
6.027.912 5.244.621

128.956 138.793
74.847 81.143
2

Total ftnanciai assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Reserve funds .

Amounts not available within one year

,481 8.325

7.945.771 6.857.367

564.961 .  637.529
74,947 81 143

639.808 718.672

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 7 305 963 $ 6.138 69S

It is the Organization s goal to rriaintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $10,200,000 and S6.710.000. at February 28. 2023 and
2022. respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $700,000 and $445,650.
available to borrow on at February 28. 2023 and 2022. respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28. 2023 and 2022
totaled $209,878 and $186,976. respectively.

15



CQUNTISS, INCi

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

OPERATING LEASES

On January 1. 2022. the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02 Leases
(Topic 842). As pan of implementing ASU 2016-02. the Organization evaluated current
contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use (ROD) assets
represent the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the lease term, and the
lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make tease payments arising
from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise from
operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of future lease payments
over the lease terms The Organization has elected to discount future cash flows at the
risk free borrowing rates commensurate with the lease terms, which was 1.8% at March
1. 2022. Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC 842 and
are recognized as costs.are incurred. The Organization's operating leases are
described below.

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 20. 2023 and 2022. the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was S586,539 and $544,299. respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2024 $ 488.157
2025 287,590
2026 92.911
2027 82.006
2028 77 500

Thereafter 477.065

1.505.229

Less imputed interest . 117.902

Total S 1 387 327

ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has acaued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $691,684 and $660,158 at
February 28, 2023 and 2022. respectively The Organization amended the poltcy
effective March 1. 2022, the policy allows for a maximum of 50 days to be carried over
to the next fiscal year, however, upon termination only two weeks will be paid out The
two week liability is $285,599 at February 28. 2023.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a S200.000 revolving line of credit agreement (Ihe line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for rDonthly variable interest payrr^nts based
on the Wall Streel Journal Prime Rate (7.75% and 3.25% at February 28. 2023 and
2022. respectively) plus 1%. but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all
the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February 28. 2023.
There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February 26. 2022.

The Organization had a revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the amount of
$400,000. with a bank that is due on demand. The line called for monthly variable
interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% at February 28. 2022). The line was
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February
28, 2022. The line was closed during the year ended February 28. 2023.

The Organization entered into an additlonat revolving line of credit agreement (the line)
.  in the amount of $500,000. with a bank that is due on June 2. 2023. The line calls for
monthly variable interest payments based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.75%
at February 28. 2023). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. There was
no balance outstanding at February 28. 2023.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28. 2023. approximately $18,300,000 (29%). and
$32,000,000 (51%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. For the year ended February 28. 2022. $13,200,000 (30%). and
$15,300,000 (35%). of the Organization's total revienue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upori
continued support from these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28:

2023 2022

5.50% note payable to a financial ihstitutioti in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
property of the Organization. $ 210.550 $ 218.228
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NOTES TO CONSOLIOATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
5.75% note payable to a Tmancial institution in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. ■ The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. 71.040 210.279

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 35.179 42.958

•7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on' property
located In Concord. New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 65.076 116.572

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in rhonlhly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28.2022. (See Note 11). 187.615 280.439

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hampshire Housing
deferred until June 1. 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate. 341,922 343.081

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost 911.392 1.220,557

Unamortized deferred financing costs f5 3201 (5.8Q31

906.072 ' 1.214.754
Less amounts due within one year (237.9261 (314 2651

Long term portion S $ 90Q 4Bf^
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COWWWNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRrMACK COUNTIES IMC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maiuhiies of long-term debt as of February 28. 2023 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2024 $ 237.926
2025 106.239
2026 27.053
2027 t8.294
2028 11.783

Thereafter 510.097

I

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In April'2020. the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ( PPP'). The PPP, was established as part of
the Ccronavlrus Aid. Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"),

On September 14. 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness in the amount of
$1,615,427. The forgiven proceeds are included in income for the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $319,873 has been converted to a loan, due in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature In April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28. 2023 is $187,615. (See Note
10)

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28:

2023 2022

Land $  279.340 $  279.340
Building and improvements 7.347.874 7.089.459
Equipment and vehicles 4.762,497 6.335.485
Construction in process 132.920 41.401

12.522,631 13.745,685
Less accumulated depreciation 6.165.156 7.528 363

Property and equipment, net ' t 6.3S7 47S $ 6.217 322

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28. 2023 and 2022 totaled
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any. have r\ot been determined or assessed
as of February 28. 2023.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28:

2m zm

NH Food Pantry Coalition $  683 S 663
SeniorCenter 142.251 143.437
Eider Services 7.317 68.427
Mary Gale 38,130 25.629
NH Rotary Food Challenge - 5.064
Summer Feeding 20.503 47.540
Caring Fund 8.793 •• 8,792
Agency - FAP 60,913 27.307
Agency Head Start 216.604 222.258
Agency - FP/PN 69.329 87.253
Community Crisis > 350
Other Programs 458 809

Total net assets with donor restrictions §37.528

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Selmont Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housir>g. Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Proper^
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, Inc. . Transitional Support Services
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MliRRfWftCK COUNTIES IMC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

The services perlormed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties). HUO compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenanoe of property.

The amount due from the related paniea for operating activities (collectively) at February
28. 2023 and 2022 was S268.293 and $324,385. respectively, and is included in
accounts receivables Additional amounts due from related parties at February 28. 2023
and 2022 were $61,348 and 65.488. respectively.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Mern'mack Counties. Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program In certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled 5128.956 and $138,793 at February 28. 2023 and 2022. respectively.

ASC Topic No.. 825-10. Financial instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820.
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market. Income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. PASS ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows;

Level 1 • Inputs to the valuation methodotogy are quoted prices available in
active markets for Identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 • Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, which are either directly or Indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is litUe or no market activity for the asset or {lability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk '

At February 28. 2023 and 2022. the Organization s investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value Moasurements using Sionificant Obaorvable Inputs ILevel 11

2023 2022

Beginning balance - mutual funds S 138.793 S 126.996
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds f9.837) 11.797

Ending balance - mutual funds £. 138.7,^^

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

17. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTtONSfSERVICES

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the accounting
policies described in Note 1.

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the Hnancial statements and the
corresponding program expenses for the year ended February 28. 2023, is as follows;

Volunteer hours

Head Start and Early Head Start S 117.171
SCSEP 88.700

Rental space 146,026
Advertising 15.960
Donated goods 33.891

Total

18. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of (he current year.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 14. 2023. the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

^  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap.
Merrimack Counties. Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28. 2023. The information m this Schedule Is presented in
accordance with, the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulatior)s
Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Pnnciples. and Audit
Requirements for federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected ponion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., it is not, intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization

NOTE 2 SUfWMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of.
accounting Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or ere limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or aedits made m the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has elected to use
the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INOEPENOENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVBRNMENT AUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Sfates of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28. 2023. and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 14. 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning arKf performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reportir>g
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or emptoyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control thai Is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.
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Report on Complience end Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether^ Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial, statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose o/f/iis/7eporr

The purpose of this report Is solely; to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considefing the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communtcalion is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14. 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Direclors
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Report on Complisnee for £och Major Federal Program

Opinion on Bach Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc. s major federal programs for the year ended February 28. 2023.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors" results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. complied, in ail
material respecls. with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and rnaterial effect on each of its major federal programs for the year erxJed February
28. 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Slates: and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Phncipios. and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors" Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be Independent of Community Action Program Belknap.-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinbn on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc."s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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R&sponsibWties of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs.

Auditors* Responslbiiities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrirhack Counties. Inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is hot
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when It exists. The risk of not delecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, rhisrepresenfations. or the override
of internal centre!. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would Influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the nsks of material noncompliance. whether due td fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Memmack Counties.
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit In order to design audit'
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report Oft tnternol Control Over CompUance

A deHciency in internal control over corripliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow rnanagement or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
conlfol over cornpliance. such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of dericiencies, in internal control
over compliarice with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was foi the limited purpose described In
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies In Internal control over compliance that mighl be material
weakriesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider (o be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, rhateriai
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14. 2023
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' repon expresses an unmodifted opinion on whether the rmancial staiemehts
of Community Action Program BelKnap Merrimack Counties. Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant dencienctes relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the tndependent Auditors- Report of> Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3 No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statenrrents of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. which would be required to be reported' In
accordance with Government Auditirig Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over maior federal award programs are
ropofted in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Unifonn Guidance No material
weaknesses are reported.

5 The auditors report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc expresses an unmodified opinion on ail
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7 The programs tested as major programs include: U.S. Department of the Treasury
Emergency Rental Assistance Program. ALN 21.023. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds. ALN 21.027. U.S. Department of Agriculture. Women. Infants and
Childnen. ALN 10.557, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Head Start. ALN
93.600. New Hampshire Public Utilities Company. Electrical Assistance Program NON*
Federal.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and 8 programs was Si.822.344.

9 Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not tJ© a
low-risk auditee.
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FiNDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Communfty Action Program Belknap Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

SCRC Grant *

Key PersonngI

Brandon Boewe

WeathCfUation Technical Coordinator/Quality Control inspector
568,410.16

Christine Bouchard

Weaiheritatlon Support Coordinator

544,903.50

Kenneth Boyer

Weaiherization Energy Auditor/Quality Control inspector
563,999.00

Dylan Braitain

Weatheritation Energy Auditor

553,605.50

Kyle LaValley

Weatherization Energy Auditor/Building Analyst

557,704.50

Christopher Vought
Director of Weatherization & Energy Conservation

$90,025.78
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Christine Bouchard

Highly motivated, organized, several years of various types of customer service experience. Looking
for an opportunity to learn new skills and grow with the right company.

Authorized to work i.n i.he US for any Cfipicyer
I

Work Experience

Program Manager • Senior Community Service Employment Program
Community Action Piogiuin BclV..nap-Mcrfin\K> Couuit.-;.. Inr. • Cu'i-.-oi'd. Mm

|ijiy 2021 lu hie-;»?iii

• Daily rrtanagement and training of participam staff.
• Conduct Semi>ar>oual reviews. lEP's.

• Resume creation/development with program participants.

• SuDmit Bi'weekly payroll data to HR. manage participants using Payiocity.
'• Conducling'enrollments. community service assignments, exits, terminations.
• Maintainingicase notes artd participant Pies.

• Recruitment €> Marketing including marketing material creation for new participants and host sites.
• Entering participant information in to DDL SPARQfGPMS database. '

• Made significant program Improvements to modernize and sirnplify enrollment paperwork/processes.
• Remote work, zoom, Hicrosot Teams

• Assisted director with quarterly grant narra.tives. budget reviews.

Meals on Wheels Driver/ center assistant -Suncook Senior Cen^r (part-time)
Community Action Program eclwrtap-M^rririock Ccur-oc-s. 'r-c. • AHenr,tov.-i\ nh
April 2021 (o'uly 2021

I

• Daily route sheet evaluation for clients, meals, changes, etc.
• Packing, delivering meals to homebound elderly clients.

- Providing wellness checks during delivery.

• Coilecting/f^oviding program donation envelopes.
• Making phone calls to clients to provide wellness checks on non-delivery days.

. ' Unloading delivery trucks, assisting manager wlin any special projects as needed.

Office support P/T seasonal
Miilic.jn Nurseries. LLC • Chichcitef •*»'•

5ep:.emhcr 2020 to 0*}ccmh«?r 2020

• General office duties, including assisting the lirtancc department and Human resources functions.
• Daily invoice reviewing for errors and discrepancies.

• Emailing/mailing customers copies of invoices

• Entering customer payments into system

• Entering daily truck driver and vehicle log information.
• Monthly statement mailings.



• Assisting ivith job postings online, setting up interviews, new hire paperwork.
• Assisting with new policy research and updating handbook.

ruraL mail carrier
UNITED STATCS postal SFRVICE

April 2008 to February 2020

• Daily sorting, organization, and delivery of mail, packages and accountable items within expected time
frame

• Provided on the job training to new RCA's

• implemented new trainirtg methods to improve and eipcdite new hire training process
• Maintained required route paperwork, updates and deadlines

• Supported Post Master in operational improvements and resolution of delivery problems to deliver top*
ry>tch customer service

Education

B.S. In BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

September 2021

A.S. In SMAU BUSINESS MANAGEMENT AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP

HESSER COLLEGE

May 7006

Skills

• Problem solver

< Team player

• Microsoft office

• Microsoft Word

• Microsoft PowerPoint

• Social Media

• Customer Service

• Microsoft Outlook

• Adobe Photoshop (Less than l year)

• Adobe Illustrator (Less than 1 year)

• Program Management '

• Paylocity

• Interviewing

Certifications and Licenses

OSHA 10



Driver's License

Assessments

Social Media - Proficient
October 2010

Crcatino content, communicating online, and building a brand's reputation.
Full results: 8rpii.cient

Customer Focus & Orientation — Highly Proficient
Februn.-y 2020

Responding to customer situations with sensitivity
Full results: ̂ligtjly Prpficient

indeed Asscssnu-ms provides skills teits Uiat a,> mn iiu-cati /e ef o license or certiOcaticn. or .:om,nued
deve'opmem m joy p'Ofessional field.



Kenneth Boyer

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Molivatod and energcUc with 7+ years experience iniprovlng energy efficie<»cy
In homes, schools, businesses, etc... Hard working ard ouigolng. lama
reliable project leader as well as a trusted team nemoer.

EXPERIENCE

Turn Cycle Solutions, LLC., Nashua, NH - Energy Auditor/Operotions
Monoger

JANUARY 2b18 • AUGUST 3019

• Acquired BPI Building Analyst Certification. Performed energy audits
throughout New Hampshire within the NHSaves weatherizatlon
program. Vast knowledge and understanding of rebates and Incentives
available to residents In the region, regardless of heal source.

•  Estimated project cost, as well as annual savings In both energy and
energy expenses.

• Managed scheduling, including audits, follow up appointments as well
as a field staff of up to six (6) Weatherlzation/retrofil Installers.

• Other responsibilities Include material inventory maintenance, client
intake, assisting In the field when needed, networking and out.-each as
well as fieet maintenance

Energy Efficient Investments Inc.. Merrlmack. NH - Weaiheriiation
Tech

FEBRUARY 2012 • JANUARY 301B

•  Job/pfoject leader, team me.mber in large and small Insulation projects.
2.-part spray foam, t-part spray foam, fiberglass and cellulose. Proficient
In door and window treatmeoi/v/ealherization.

•  Knowledge and involvement in all phases. Ability to perform, lead and
train others In cellulose preparation and Installation, ventilation, various
air-sealJng methods, suspended ceilings, jobsite and personal
cleanliness, etc..



Checkmate Pliia, Manchester/Londonderry. NH • Driver/Cook

N0VEM3ER 2007 - AUSUST 2018

■ • Take orders, pfep/cook. deliver food as v/ell as customer scn/ice.
• Open/close store, stock, inventory and full cleaning procedures.

EDUCATION

Manchester Community College. Manchester. NM • Associotss m
Applied Science in Building Coos/rt/cf/on Technology
SEPTEMBER 2006 - JUNE 2008

Skills

Experience in weatherlzatlon. energy auditing, operations/project
management.,sales, client/crew scheduling, estimating, material slock/supply,
drafting, blueprint reading. Microsoft Office. 0Pl Building Analyst (issued -
04/18).Osha-lO Certified. DOT/Medlcalty certified box truck operator (oxp 6/21).
EPA/HUD RRP Certified Renovator. Certified class 3 forkim Operator.
Experience/training in crew/teani leadership. Experience In framing, siding,
painting end many phases of building construction.



Uniunin

lifiiiU-*
,0.0,kmWth«-«...wo«M"«

10 tactile laik^ Vrtth determioat'on and precision. wh*tl*f •wtkmgindepender^tlY or
cotlJbof ativdy iviih others. Demonstrates a proactive approach to decision-maWng
rfndopcralionat responsibilities with an ejjcmcss to talcc OP diverse challenges.

Employment History

Masters it Arms. Unhed States Navy, Sitverdale

• PioviticO security tor lO diHercnt nuclear power submarines at a cost ol 3.4

b>l!i<>«idotlar.s each. Rcsullint in rcro damage to the submarines.

• MjiotaincO security aloivg a convoy route 'or the transportalionot loading and

unloading ol rnrclcar w«3p>j»^ costing 7 millicyi dollars each: zero percent lost or

thelt of ruckar weapons.

• Cscor'.mgscrvlcewas provided in'orfign nationals needing access to piers to

lour subnrariftes

• Secuncy provided over restricted water access to deny any water born threats

to nuclear submarines;

Receiving Manager. Sprouts. Grarsd Junction

• E'firtenily hdrvlle the toarting ar<d unloading o' products shipments, ensuring

timely and accurate processing.

• ReccKc artd meticulously cbecV invokes for accuracy, identifying arsd resolving

discreparciei pr-xnotS.

• Collaboritcwiihcross-functionalteamstoensiircseimlesscnrTununicationand

resolution of invoicing isjucv.

• Coixhxl detailed .Miessnscins of inventory levels, comtxtring them with

financia' records to ascuriaincrwlli and Icssinformatirsa

• Utiiire analytical sVills to provtdn insight into profit margins, contributir^ to

strategic dccision-m.tkinf for busirsess opiimkation.

• Ovflriecuferyooeratiohsaithesiorp.

Education

High School Oipioma. Delta High School. Delta



KYLE LAVALLEY

EXPERIENCE

FEBRUARY 2013 - PRESENT

ENVIRONMENTAl SERVICES TECHNICIAN II, tLLIOT HOSPITAL

•  receiving dcparcment needs lfon» ad depan-nems in the t>ospiia' nnd delegoting ihc job
duties (o environmental service stall

•  reporting to supervisor the tasks completed and any issues that aiose during shi/t
•  floor care: including mopping, siripping. and waxing floors
•  room sanitation and cleaning after patient discharge
•  room sanitation and cleaning after COViD patients moved or discharged
•  custodial duties

FEBRUARY 2009 - APRIL 2013

■WAIT STAFF, BLAKE'S RESTAURANT & CREAMERY
•  stocking supplies
•  waiting and bussing tables

lUNE 20O7 - FEBRUARY 2009

DELI MANAGER, TWIN MOUNTAIN COUNTRY STORE
•  SLICED MEAT/CHEESf AND PREPPED VEGCIfS
•  PREPARED SANOWlCHf S
•  OPERATED REGISTER AND BALANCED REGISTER DRAWER

lUNE 200$ - JUNE 2006

LABORER, WHITNEY'S LLC HOME IMPROVEMENT
•  SIDING HOUSES
•  FRAMING

EDUCATION

JUNE 200S

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, OMBUDSMAN EDUCATION, LANCASTER. NH'

SKILLS

•  operating and maintaining sanituaitun and • Operating «inj maintaining side-by-side
cleaning equipment machine.s for v/axmg floors

•  Knowledge of tools and how to use them • Experienced in hospital saniti/aiion and
•  Knowledge of, and ability to operate, power cleaning procedures

•  Knowledge and impicmcntation cf safety
•  Floor care maintenance including sweeping and protoco s

mopping • Custodial duties



CHRISTOPHER A. V'OUGHT II

SUMMARVOF SRI1I.5;

•  Business owner for over 10 years and very familiar with all aspects of business
management including; Sales, risk management, cost coiurol and profit & loss

•. ExjKricnce as a director, general manager, operations manager, home inspector, energy
auditor, properly/facilities maintenance, contractor, and various a.spcc't.s of quality control

•  Proficient with Windows operating systems. Microsoft Office, TREAT energy auditing
.software, HomcGaugc home inspection software

• Comfortable with computers, cicclronics. hand tools, power tools, various mulii-mclcr^,
testing devices and diagnostic equipment

•  Lock-Out Specialist- includinu key cuiiing-dupliciilini;, residential door lock
repair-replacement

CAREER EXPERiE.NCE

Director of Housing Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation 02/2019-Current
Comnwnity Aclion Program
Belhiap-Memmuck CountU'S !nc.

• Manage the Housing Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation Programs, including the
Weathcrization Assistance Program, CORE energy programs and Lead Hazard Control
Program

•  Fiscal accountability, budget management, and scheduling
•  Responsible for the ttoy-io-day operations, including a hands-on approach in training,

assisting and mentoring department employees
• Working closely with funding sources and various depanmenis within The Agency to

ensure Program success and growth

Certified Building Analyst/Energy Auditor 11/2017-02/2019
Southern New Hampshire Scniccs Inc.

BPI Certified Building Analyst Professional
Successfully passed the Energy Auditor Pilot Program written exam
Responsible for a minimum of 120 energy audits per year and maintaining 40+ open
projects in progress
Educating clients about the program and its process, how ihcir home operates as a
system, and how to conserve energy
Irupcct all areas of the home to dclcrminc potential health and safely concerns, evaluate
the effectiveness and condition of existing insulation and thermal boundaries
Perform numerous technical tests regarding combustion appliance safety and efficiency,
heating/cooling system distribution and diagnostics, mechanical ventilation, air leakage'
and cicciricol appliance energy usage
Input the data collected during the audit into energy auditing sofiware, generate
applicable rcpons. organize each project and ensure all required paperwork is complete
Determine a course ol oclion for replacement, supplementation or improvement of the
homes energy related systems, safety devices and thermal envelope



•  Initiate a work order containing all measures to be performed, assign to applicable
contractors and ensure the work is completed as ordered

• Coordinate closely and effectively with clients, coniraciors, uiiliiy/program personnel and
colleagues within the organization

State of New Hampthirc Licensed Home Inspector 10/2016'-Current
(>%vncr/Gencrett Monayr.r nt Time's A U 'tLvti/tfi Home /n\/H.'c/ion Service.s

•  Slate of New Hampshire Home Inspection License. American SocicivofKomc
Inspectors (ASHI) AssiKiale Member

•  Execute prc-listing and pre-elosing residential home inspections, c.xisiing homeowner
general safety & maintenance inspections, well water and radon gas testing

• Generate comprehensive reports containing all observations, information, and images
gathered during the in.spcclion

•  Coordinate directly with Clients, Realtors. Real Estate-Agencies, Mongnge SpecialisLs,
and various professionals in the residential home buying & home maintenance field

Home, Facilities A. Properr>' Malntinance/Repnir Scn iecs 06/2015-06/2017
(hi iier/Ocw.riil Stana^cr at Time s A Wuxiin^ Hundy man Services

•  Various light-duty repairs, niainlenanco services, upkeep, and consullaiion catering
primarily to busy, unable, and'or inexperienced homeowners and small business owners

•  Education and advisement to Clients ofiny recommcndailons in the areas of remodeling,
upgrading, repairing, and maintaining various areas and componeni.s ofchcir homc.s and
small businesses

•  Produce accurate project cost estimates detailing all planning, materials, and litnelinc
while effectively communivating with the Client to ensure they fully comprehend the
entire project scope from start to finish

• Generate new clients and mninlain Client loyally through pcrlbnninii quality services and
my ability to comniunicaic profcssionallyand intelligenliy

Independent Carpet Contractor/Installer 03/2008-02/2017
Siih Contnicti'd with Lowe's Home Improvement Stares C O Paul S. Trujiinek ///. In.ualh B\
Pout LLC. (Certified Carpet installer)
• Optimized and maintained communication and relationships with store management,

associates, and customers during the initial consultation, measurement, purchasing, and
carpet installation processes

• Achieved weekly, monthly, and yearly scores above 95% in Professionalism and
Craflsmanship, consistently

•  Received multiple "Gold=- (100%) and • Silver" (95+%) end-of-year awards presented bv
Lowe's to excepiional Sub-Contractors in each region



IW,W Cw Raual USA WC (Alan,,, Ra„ A Car <« .Vaiioaal Cur Rraialj
Hired, directed scheduled, mcniorcd. and supporlcd over -40 exempt & non-cxcmpt *
employees working within the following areas; management, sales, client service clerical
adrnmistralion. payroll, training, production, logistics, facililici, asset protection and cash
management, vehicle service and repair

• Managed the daily inventory of a peak rental fleet of over 1.200 vchiclc.s
•  Increased sales, which in turn generated over S9.t)00.000 in annual revenue, camina 34%

market share with 6 direct compctiior>> in Manchester. NH•  J^n'I'aicd the creation of succc.ssful syslem.s to Interpret busincs.s.reporling. trend analysis
budget obligations, and flnancial data unaiysis.
liinovated demand forecasting, pricing, logistics, inventory utilization, and strategic
planning practices

•  Led the coordination of numerous projccis including a dual-brand consolidation
involving the conversion of a single branded facility Into operating two separate brands
computer operating systems and cliciiieic

EDUCATION A CERTIFICATIONS:

•  Residential Energy Performance Association (RFPA) Associate Member
Home Performance Coalition Conference (2019)
HUD/EPA Lead RRP Certified Renovator (2018)
OSHA 30 Hour Outreach Training Program - Construction (2018)
NYSWDA Building Analyst Professional training course (2018)
Energy Out West Conference (2018)
ASni Inspection World Conference & Convention (2017)
ASHI Standards of Practice and Code of Ethics course (2016)
National Home Inspection Exam (2016)
Manchester Community College (2016) Ccnificate for American Society of Home
Inspectors (ASHI) and State of New Hampshire Home Inspection Course
Licensed Maine State Motor Vehicle Inspection Technician (1998-2003)
Portland (Maine) Regional Vocational Technical Center (1996)
Diploma - Automotive Technology & Automotive Business Management
Decring High School - Diploma


